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SENATOR DEBORAH ORTIZ:  Welcome to this joint informational hearing of the Senate Health and Human Services Committee as well as the Senate Public Safety Committee.  I’m joined here today with the chair of the Senate Public Safety Committee, Senator Bruce McPherson.  I think he and I have both been franticly trying to find Members to actually learn from this informational hearing, which has been a bit of a challenge.


But let me welcome you all here.  We do have several speakers on multiple panels, so we do ask that you try to be observant of the time and be as concise in your remarks and answers as you can.  We ask generally that the presentations within each panel be restricted to three minutes each, with more time available, depending on the Senators’ questions.  If we’re not joined by many Senators, there may not be many questions.


We’re holding this very important hearing because, of course, the issue that was brought to this committee through Senator Dunn’s bill was heard in this committee.  It was acted on, and it was referred to the Senate Public Safety Committee since it did have dual jurisdiction.  The objective was to have a broader discussion on both the public safety issues as well as the health and human services issue, and that is why we are here today.  I would ask panelists to identify, through the course of the hearing, the most salient and critical issues where more attention and oversight should be directed in future legislative or administrative efforts.  


Child care is a critical component of a functional workforce in our state, where many parents depend on this care, and those who provide it, for their flexibility to access and maintain gainful employment.  Children must be protected in these settings to the fullest extent possible, and this hearing is a sincere effort to work through those safety issues as well as the impact on the industry and the demand for child care through the policies that we develop.  I’m optimistic we can work through some of those issues.  


I thank Senator McPherson for joining me, and I give him the opportunity to comment.


SENATOR BRUCE McPHERSON:  Thank you, Madam Chair, and I appreciate that.  I have to apologize that I have to leave right after this.  I’ll try to get back.  I know how frustrating it has been for each of us to get Members here today.  


This is a serious concern that we have in our communities throughout the State of California.  I think we need to look and see if any problems do exist in the current system before we take any action that may have cause for more problems than it solves.  I hope that this hearing will help us with that determination.


As Senator Ortiz said, the Senate Public Safety Committee, which I chair, took testimony yesterday on Senate Bill 1335 by Senator Dunn, and we put it over a week to wait and see if this hearing could clarify some of those issues raised by the bill.


I am personally interested in whether there is any evidence of problems with the existing exemption system.  The fact that someone has a criminal history alone should not be cause for alarm, if the Department of Social Services (DSS) is adequately evaluating the applications for exemption and looking at factors such as the facts of the offense itself, how long ago the offense occurred, and what the person has done since to show rehabilitation.


We all know – the people in this room – and believe that child care is a very important job, and safe child care is very, very important.  I’m concerned, however, about the overreaction that might take place if there is not a real problem and having a result that there are not enough qualified child care workers, and working families can either not find child care at all or turn to an unlicensed child care provider.  We don’t want to provide a solution that creates a bigger problem than we have now.  It got through Senator Ortiz’s Health Committee on, I think, a seven to one vote.  I believe that there was movement in the Public Safety Committee to approve this, and we will hear that, I believe, next week.  


I can assure you that staff of the Public Safety Committee will be here through the hearing, and I will hear from them what you’re about to say.  


I appreciate the opportunity to open.  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


Let me give an overview of what is likely to occur here.  The points were raised earlier about asking the witnesses to please stick to the topic area and try not to be redundant.  


It would be most appropriate at this time to present an overview of the issues by asking Jack Hailey, consultant to the Senate Office of Research, to provide an overview on some of the most frequently asked questions.


As Mr. Hailey is preparing for his presentation, let me apologize to those of you who are here on this issue.  We have some Members who are actually sitting in various committees.  Senator Vasconcellos is a member of both the Public Safety Committee as well as the Health and Human Services Committee.  He was a participant in our policy committee hearing when we heard Senator Dunn’s bill.  He is actually occupied in a Budget subcommittee at the moment.  


I am unclear where Senator Sher is.  He, indeed, should also be in this committee hearing.  As I mentioned earlier, the Health and Human Services Committee did hear this.  The value of this was to have the Public Safety Committee members hear this testimony to guide them in their decision-making process.  So, I do hope that Senator Sher finds the time to join us and become informed.


Secondly, I believe Senator Burton is somewhere in the building.  I would hope that he would join us as well, as he is very key to the Senate Public Safety Committee process.


I understand Senator Polanco is somewhere in the building, possibly in a Budget committee.


As the one person on this panel who has heard the issue and spent time going through that and acted as chair of the first policy committee, I apologize to the public and to the witnesses.  I do hope that other Members will be joining us.


Please begin, Mr. Hailey.


MR. JACK HAILEY:  Madam Chair, I’m Jack Hailey, from the Senate Office of Research.  


You referred to the questions and answers I set out, and I’ll go through that fairly quickly with a quick look at the size of child care, a look at the fingerprint clearance process, what’s happened the last couple of years in sheer numbers, what that process entails, and then, finally, what the Orange County Register charged, what the State Auditor found, and what the Auditor has found very recently.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Mr. Hailey, let me interrupt you for a moment.  


I apologize.  We actually were planning on having a fully scheduled hearing to act on bills today.  At the last moment, we decided to put those measures over because we were missing so many Members and could not conduct business as a committee.  So, I apologize to those of you who are here on items that were agendized for the action portion of this committee hearing.  We will not be hearing those bills today.  We do not have a quorum.  Therefore, those items have been put over, and you can check with the committee staff to determine what that date will be.


I’m sorry.  Please continue.


MR. HAILEY:  Certainly.


There are 44,000 licensed homes in California.  That’s a home where you or your spouse or another adult in the house takes care of children.  There are 14,000 licensed centers.  Combined, they have a space for more than a million children daily.  Two hundred and seventy-five thousand people either work or live in or own those facilities.  


So, who must, of that 275,000, submit fingerprints for criminal record clearance?  In essence, all of them.  Anyone who works at the facility and volunteers at the facility – cooks, janitors, aides – are subject to a criminal records hearing.  Someone who owns the facility, any adult who lives in the facility, including the 19-year-old son of the family day care provider.  Any nonrelative who’s paid by the state to care for children of poor families through CalWORKs or the Department of Education’s subsidized program may not need a license, but if they’re to be paid, they must go through the criminal record clearance.


That’s, for the most recent year, 93,000 people submitting fingerprints to the Department of Justice (DOJ) for child care alone during the calendar year.  Forty-two thousand of those were for center staff or owners; 27,000 from family child care; and 24,000 who don’t need a license but are paid to care for the children of people in CalWORKs or other low-income families.  So, that’s 93,000 folks.


What happened to those 93,000 sets of fingerprints?  DOJ found 81,000 of those, or 87 percent, had no criminal record.  They were cleared very quickly.  Now, 1,800, or 2 percent, were cleared after a quick review of their record.  Either they had a record but it had an infraction – not a misdemeanor or a felony – or they fell into one misdemeanor and the probation ended more than three years ago; two misdemeanors and the probation for the most recent ended more than five years ago; or three, and the probation ended more than ten.  There were a few folks who fell into that.  Then, 3 percent, or 3,000, were cleared after DSS reviewed evidence of their rehabilitation.  These are the so-called exempted folks.  


One hundred of that 93,000 were denied outright because they had a felony record of one or more of the fifty-one crimes we don’t allow anyone to have committed, been found guilty of, and still be in a child care program.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me stop you there.  Would that be an exemption?  If they were convicted of one of the fifty-one crimes, they’re not exemptible.


MR. HAILEY:  No, they are not exemptible, so they don’t fall into the exemption at all.  Less than one percent of these 93,000 have one of these felonies.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay, thank you.


MR. HAILEY:  And then, 4,400 had a criminal record, could have sought  an exemption and didn’t choose to – so, that’s another 5 percent – and 2,500            (3 percent) asked for an exemption, provided evidence that was not convincing to DSS, and DSS denied them the exemption.


So, of that 93,000, in other words, 3 percent, or 3,000 people, last year asked for, provided information, and received an exemption.


Now, I mentioned that there is this, what I’m calling, automatic exemption.  I think they call it a simplified exemption.  That’s one misdemeanor and your probation ended three years or more ago; two misdemeanors and it ended five years ago or more; three and it ended ten years ago or more.  There was some discussion yesterday at Public Safety about there being a list of waivable or exemptible crimes.  There is no such list.  If you committed a misdemeanor or a felony, you must request an exemption unless your misdemeanor was one three years ago or more.


So, what do you have to do to get an exemption?  The list is a bit long, but basically you provide information about the crime, information about your rehabilitation, any certificate of therapy or rehabilitation, and three letters of reference that cannot come from a relative and cannot come from someone who is about to hire you or has hired you, and a formal request from that person at the facility, asking that you be exempted.  


That’s the material that the Department of Social Services pours through before, in half the cases, granting an exemption and half the cases not.  They have provided you, that I forwarded, with seven years’ worth of data.  Basically, in the last seven years, about half the people who have requested exemptions have been granted them; about half have been denied them.  And those are only the folks eligible for the exemption and wouldn’t include the folks who committed one of those fifty-one felonies. 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But some, in fact, sought the exemption that were not exemptible – it appears.


MR. HAILEY:  If I said that, I said it wrong.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  The one hundred were denied outright?


MR. HAILEY:  Yes.  DOJ sends their rap sheet to Social Services.  Social Services looks on that rap sheet, sees one of those fifty-one crimes, picks up the phone and calls the family day care home or the center and says, “That person must leave.  You cannot have that person there as of this moment.”  If it’s a home and, say, it’s the provider or the spouse, then, in essence, the licensed is pulled.


So, they didn’t ask for an exemption.  There’s no chance they’d fall through cracks.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, seeking clearance versus seeking an exemption.


MR. HAILEY:  I didn’t make that clear.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, it’s clear.  I just wanted to reiterate it.


MR. HAILEY:  They submitted the fingerprint form.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  They had a hit and they were denied.


MR. HAILEY:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


MR. HAILEY:  There’s some options in front of you and one that the Department will share with you today on informing the public.  Under current law, a member of the public – not just a parent but a member of the public – requests to the Department of Social Services—


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can you direct us to the page?


MR. HAILEY:  I believe it’s “Options for Informing the Public.”


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Page 6 in the packet.  That’s item three, the second paragraph.


MR. HAILEY:  Yes.  Current law, based on the CBS decision, is that the public has a right to know what facility employs or has living in it a person with an exemption and has a right to know the names of people who have exemptions.  DSS provides a match of those two upon request.


The Governor sent a letter in March to the director of the Department of Social Services, directing the Department to adopt emergency regulations that would require the child care provider to inform parents if their facility has a person with an exemption.  Right now, you ask DSS, the Governor wants the Department to issue emergency regulations saying that the facility will provide that information.


DSS issued a memorandum the next day directing licensees to inform parents of the name of any exempted employee at the facility.  They proposed legislation, which your committee, Senator, has heard, and yesterday it was heard in Public Safety, which would require persons with an exemption to allow DSS to share conviction information with anyone who requests it.  Again, the Department, not the provider.


Today, you’ll receive from DSS, or they’ve made available to you, a very interesting list of the crimes committed and when committed by the 48 individuals who were exempted last year in Orange County.  They work in Orange County child care.  They’ll speak to that, but as you can see, three committed their crimes within the last five years; the remainder more than five years ago.  Two of those forty-eight had a felony conviction, and they tell you what those are.  And the lion’s share of the remaining misdemeanor convictions were petty theft, misdemeanor shoplifting, and misdemeanor welfare fraud.  


This list may, in fact, go a long way to allaying parents’ fears, and having the Department publish such a list every year for large counties and every year for groups of smaller counties might be a way to allay the parents’ fears that an exempt person is a danger to their child.


The Orange County Register, in brief, in their lead article that Sunday in March, leveled five charges, that:

· Almost 25 percent of Orange County’s child care facilities have failed to have their employees go through background checks.

You can ask the Department if they believe that’s the case.

· Convicted criminals are granted waivers and allowed to practice child care.

· Background checks, when made, are cursory.

Not, by the way, by my looking sort of over the shoulder of DSS.  It looked pretty formidable.

· DOJ uses databases that do not include 30 percent of California crimes.

I think the Department will be testifying today.  And, last of all, 

· The state has tried to keep secret all criminal information about child care workers.


Two years ago the State Auditor did review licensing at DSS, and they made several recommendations around the criminal clearance procedures.  They recommended that DSS follow its new procedures, which, I guess, it had developed in 2000, around management review of any criminal exemption involving a felony.  So, the lead staff reviews it and grants it, and the manager reviews it before it’s official.  When granting exemptions:

· To consider all available information, not just rap sheets; so, therefore, the rehabilitation information.  

· To use a tracking system to identify cases where the people are slow to provide information that they want in their exemption so that they’re not working with children any longer than necessary.

And,

· To review the way in which they use FBI information.  


The Auditor took a look recently at how DSS was doing, vis-à-vis these recommendations, and found that on exercising greater caution they had taken corrective action; in dealing with their FBI records, they had taken corrective action; and they had taken partial corrective action on the slow and the incomplete background checks.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ve been joined by Senator Figueroa, and I thank her for joining us.  Senator Figueroa is a member of the Health and Human Services Committee.  Hopefully, there are members of the Public Safety Committee that are going to join us soon, because the issues that we’re going through really are the public safety issues that members in our committee raised, and we offered to do the joint hearing.  I thank her for joining us.


Have you finished your presentation?  Thank you so much.  There’s a lot here to digest, and I suspect that when Senator Figueroa gets situated, she may have questions.  So, if you could stand nearby, I’d appreciate it.


Thank you.  It’s a very thorough report, and we’ll make sure that the committee members that are not here in fact get a copy of this.


The second topic area that we’re addressing here today is the problems with the process of granting exemptions.  I would ask the representatives from the Community Care Licensing Division as well as the California Bureau of State Audits to come forward.  This section is asking the question whether or not there are problems with the process of granting exemptions and, if so, what are those problems.


Welcome, whoever wants to begin first.  Please identify yourself for the record.


MS. ELAINE HOWLE:  Elaine Howle, California State Auditor.  My comments will be with respect to the audit that we completed in August of 2000, and, also, the one-year response that we received from the Department of Social Services in August of 2001.


First, relative to granting exemptions, we had a couple of findings in our August 2000 report.  First was that the Department had significant discretion when issuing criminal exemptions, and the Department exercised a great amount of latitude in granting exemptions when we were looking at the number of exemptions that had been granted.  For example, in 25 five cases we reviewed, 10 of those cases, the individual had at least 1 felony conviction.  In one case an individual had 4 felony convictions.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Did you see the document that was given to us by the Department?


MS. HOWLE:  It was handed to me just now, so I haven’t had a chance.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I have some questions on that as well.  I know Mr. Hailey referenced it very quickly.  The grand theft, even though it’s a misdemeanor, I thought that was always a felony.  I’m kind of confused about that.  Another one is discharging a firearm within city limits.  Although a misdemeanor, it raises some red flags for me.  Disobeying a court order is probably fine unless it’s a court order for domestic violence.  So, I’m going to want the Department to respond to that, if they can, the nature of the court order.  


Battery with serious bodily injury.  A misdemeanor, but I think it’s one that warrants some discussion about discretion.  I know I’ve interrupted you, but maybe your presentation of your audit will go to that question.  But it is battery with serious bodily injury.  I’d want to know how soon, how recently, etc.  Was it family?  Was it random?


I wish that you had had a chance to look at these.  I don’t know if this is a select survey of some of them, but you actually have a fuller presentation that came in through your audit that showed some greater levels of discrepancy among the various waivers that were granted.


MS. HOWLE:  Certainly, and with respect to the crimes that you’re identifying, again, the audit was issued in August of 2000, and one of the recommendations that we had was to the Legislature to perhaps consider pursuing laws to automatically deny an exemption on a greater range of crimes.  And when I was talking earlier about the Department was exercising great discretion, there were a certain number of crimes that the Department could not grant an exemption, and we felt that that listing needed to be expanded.  But I don’t have specific information related to whether or not these crimes, certain misdemeanors, should or should not be exempt.  I would have to defer to the Department.


But what we did recommend is that, as I said, the Legislature should consider expanding that range of crimes.  In fact, in September, legislation was enacted, Chapter 819, Statutes of 2000, and that did, in fact, expand the list of crimes for which the Department could not grant an exemption.


Another concern that we had, that was mentioned briefly in the previous presentation, is that in granting exemptions, we felt that the Department was not conducting substantial review.  Many of the exemptions that were being granted were not being reviewed by supervisors.  So, analysts had the discretion, again, to make the exemption decision without that decision being reviewed by a supervisor.  In fact, when we looked at the twenty-five exemption cases, only in two instances had that exemption decision been reviewed by a supervisor.  We recommended that the Department establish new procedures to ensure that supervisors are reviewing at least a representative sample of other exemptions, but also make sure that all felony exemptions granted were reviewed by a supervisor.  The Department did react to that.  They are ensuring that supervisors review all felony exemptions and have indicated in their response that a ten percent sample of the remaining exemptions will be reviewed by a supervisor.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Just so that I understand – the prior practice, what level of staff in the Department were reviewing these exemptions?


MS. HOWLE:  It’s my understanding it was at an analyst level.  I don’t know what the specific job classification or what the specific experience of those individuals was.  Our concern was many of these exemption decisions were not being reviewed by a supervisor in the district offices or at headquarters.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That review process, was there a policy of criteria to look at that was written?  I’m going to hear from the Department, but did you see any patterns in the audit?


MS. HOWLE:  This is Sharon Smagala.  She was the project supervisor on this audit throughout the course of the audit, and she’s indicating to me that we didn’t see any criteria during the course of the audit that would give an indication as to when a supervisor should be reviewing the exemption decision.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Or when certain exemptions were granted versus not granted on the same past conviction.


MS. HOWLE:  That’s correct.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Did you have more?


MS. HOWLE:  For this discussion, as far as granting exemptions, we had the two issues:  One, there was a great amount of discretion.  I think that’s been tightened up with some of the legislation; but again, there are still certain crimes that can be exempted, as you indicated, when looking at the list that was provided by the Senate Office of Research.  Maybe the committee wants to determine whether or not that again needs to be expanded further.


And then our second issue related to granting exemption was we felt that the Department needed to ensure that these decisions were being reviewed by a supervisor.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Senator Figueroa, do you have any questions?


SENATOR LIZ FIGUEROA:  Not at this time.  I’m just kind of mulling through all of this.  It’s a lot of information.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay, thank you.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  Thank you, though.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Actually, I broke my own rule and didn’t let you finish your presentation to wait for questions, but since we have two of us here, I suspect we’ll have more than ample time.  I suspect there will be more questions, because I know I will have some after Ms. Lopez’s presentation.


Welcome.


MS. MARTHA LOPEZ:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  My name is Martha Lopez.  I’m deputy director for Community Care Licensing.


I’d like to refer to an overview of the licensing program that I provided to you.  It looks like this.  This is kind of a general overview of licensing.  The overview of the background check portion of the licensing program starts on page 14 of this document, so the other is more for background.  


I believe that we have a very strong background check system in California – for several reasons.  One, we have been doing fingerprint checks longer than almost every other state in the country.  In fact, the state of New York just started doing fingerprint background checks in the year 2000.  So, we have a longer history of it.  We also cover many more individuals – anyone who is living or working in a home.  Many volunteers have to have background checks.  It’s not just the care provider.  Thirdly, we get a considerable range of information.  We get information from the Department of Justice database.  All individuals now are also screened through the FBI database.  We get information from the central Child Abuse Index, and we also get information about serious arrests that we investigate through our field investigators.


Another thing is that we have established procedures, and I think we have improved those as a result of the audit.  Also, there has been a lot of improvement in the system based on legislation as well as administrative responses.  In the legislative arena, SB 933, that was enacted in 1998, significantly improved the background check process.  What we did there is we – you the Legislature, and the Governor signed – added the FBI check, added a $100 fine immediately upon identification that somebody has not had a background check completed, and also required that the background check process be initiated before people start to work.  Prior to that, people could go to work for a brief period of time and then the background check had to be initiated, anywhere from four days to twenty days, depending on the care facility type.  Now that has to be done before they even start working.


Additionally, we have what we call, kind of the term of art that we use, a “rap-back” system.  Anyone who is in our system, whether they had no record to begin with or whether we did give them a clearance based on our review of their record, those individuals, we maintain that file with the Department of Justice, and if there is a subsequent arrest or a conviction, Justice will notify us.  So, we have a continuous feedback on whether a person has any subsequent problem, which I think all of those things are really important to our system.


While the audit was underway, our director, Rita Saenz, asked us to tighten up on the exemption process, and we did institute guidelines in May of 2000 that added longer timeframes before people could be considered for exemptions.  That was introduced around the time when the audit was being conducted, and we have continued with those guidelines.  


Additionally, the supervisory review that was mentioned has continued.  Every single exemption that involves a felony conviction is reviewed by management as well as ten percent of all other staff work in the exemption process.


Also, we’ve added a special legal unit that is dealing with the exemption process.  It’s co-located with our exemption staff, so that if there are any questions about what should or shouldn’t be approved, they have a legal staff there to consult with them on a daily basis.


We also worked with the Senator who introduced the bill to expand the nonexemptible crimes, and we supported that.  That bill was passed in the year 2000.  It did add some additional crimes to that list.


We also have stepped up our oversight of those counties that do licensing of family … (recording tape changed – portion of text missing) … under agreements with us.  That was a further recommendation of the audit.  We have instituted those reviews of county operations on a regular cyclical basis, and we are working with those counties regularly.


We have also strengthened our automated system.  We implemented that in August of last year.  That was one of the things that the Auditor also recommended, was that we continue to work on that.  We have improved that.  We consolidated several databases into a single licensing system for tracking exemptions and all of our clearances.  That helps to track where people are in the process.  If there are delays, we can monitor that more easily.  And it also helps us to save staff time by automatically generating the letters that need to go out to the facilities and the individuals throughout the process.


So, I think we have followed up on the audit.  It was something that we took very seriously and have worked hard to implement the recommendations.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


This would be the appropriate time for the questions that I already raised and will raise.


Senator Figueroa, do you have questions of either of the two panelists?


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  I was reading a letter here from a constituent in Orange County who said she felt that most child care workers felt that the Orange County Register was out to get them.  It sounds to me, from what I hear from my constituency also, that child care workers feel they’re doing the very best they can with the limited resources that they are given or with their limited salaries, and that they’re not appreciated.  I think that’s kind of like the bottom line, is that people feel that the state or the counties are not supporting them and that, ultimately, we feel that the children aren’t safe.  


There seems to be a lot of laws and a lot of regulations in place.  I think it’s just an issue of perspective and also of educating people.  I don’t think people really understand what you do.  I think this is a wonderful hearing because you bring it out, but I don’t think people really know how all the laws play together or partner each other and that, ultimately, we do care about children.  I think there’s a lot of people who just think it’s a lot of additional paperwork.


I have two questions.  One is, what have you done recently to make it easier for people, not through exemptions, but make it easier for people to provide quality, safe child care?  Two, simultaneously, what are you doing to reach out to the population and for people to understand that you do have a mechanism in place to distract malicious people or improper providers from participating in a child care system?


MS. LOPEZ:  On your first question, Senator, I believe we have done a lot to provide assistance to care providers, and we do this not only in the licensing program but in partnership with other child care organizations. 


One of the things that we do is we have a training program for family child care providers called “Family Child Care at its Best,” that is funded through the budget process.  It provides training all over the state in a variety of core areas for family child care providers.  Things like: 

· Positive discipline.

· How do you engage kids positively in activities that are age-appropriate?

· How do you do toilet training in a way that’s positive for children? 

Those courses are offered in English and Spanish and other languages as well.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  Are they mandatory?


MS. LOPEZ:  No, they are not, but they are offered, and we provide information and encourage people to go.  That’s one thing that we do.  There are other organizations such as the resource and referral agencies, of which there are sixty of them around the state.  They also provide training programs and resources for child care providers.


We also sponsor and cosponsor with other organizations several training programs throughout the year in different parts of the state that are usually offered on Saturdays.  It will be an all-day Saturday workshop for family child care providers or center-based providers.  The ones in Los Angeles have grown quite dramatically over the years.  We have one that’s offered annually that’s an all-Spanish-language training program for family care providers.  We have another one that we do that’s for Asian Pacific Islanders, where we have classes that are in Chinese and Filipino and Korean and different languages, so that people can feel comfortable acquiring information, and we have really good speakers at those conferences.  We did a similar session in San Francisco last fall and another in San Jose that were offered in Spanish for the first time.  


So, we do try to reach out to care providers.  We do that, really, in cooperation with a lot of other entities in the child care community.  Some of them are community colleges, the resource and referral agencies, local planning councils, Child Care Law Center, organizations that are health related that talk about immunizations and health practices and child care.  We do quite a bit of this on a volunteer basis, and the turnout is phenomenal.  It really is.


Now, your second question had to do with how do we outreach to provide more information to people about the exemption process?  I think that if anything is going to come out of this recent round of media stories, it is an awareness of the public of what does this involve?  Some of the articles have been very balanced, others maybe have been more scary, but I think that the article that was recently in the Sacramento Bee, for example, I think this last weekend, provided a really good overview of what is involved and what are the issues.  And I think the Legislature has very appropriately paid a lot of attention to this area in recent weeks, so that we can really understand what is involved in this.  I believe that we do have a good system in place.


We also work with the R&Rs – the resource and referral agencies.  They advise parents on the selection of child care and what resources are available in their community.  They, under statute, direct care providers to licensing offices to review files and to ask about, either over the phone or in person, the history of care facilities that they’re considering.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’re sort of jumping between this topic area and the second one, so let me ask on point then, Ms. Lopez, specifically, are people with nonexemptible criminal histories working in child care?


MS. LOPEZ:  I would say that if anybody managed to pass through the screens, it was because we did not have the information about them.  I think Department of Justice will talk about the fact that they have significantly improved reporting over the last few years.  But we may have had one or two that got through because we didn’t know that they had a conviction.  As soon as we find out, we take very prompt action against them.  They would be removed immediately.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Again, this isn’t the waivable; rather, the nonexemptible.


MS. LOPEZ:  I’m talking about nonexemptible.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  These are serious, violent felonies—


MS. LOPEZ:  Absolutely.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  If there’s someone who was convicted for selling a significant felony amount of any drug, you’re saying that’s an exemptible?


MS. LOPEZ:  That could be considered for an exemption, and based on our guidelines, it would depend on, first of all, whether we would even consider them.  It would depend on how recent it was and how many convictions they had and whether there was any violence involved.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  The question is, is it exemptible?


MS. LOPEZ:  It is.  It could be considered for an exemption, yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can you cite the Penal Code provision that could or not?


MS. LOPEZ:  I think what we have is a listing of those crimes which are nonexemptible.  If we are prohibited from considering them for an exemption, we have a list of those.  I think anything that’s not on the nonexemptible list—


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, a felony conviction of the sale of a controlled substance is exemptible?


MS. LOPEZ:  That doesn’t mean that the person would get an exemption.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I know.  My question is, can it be exempted?


MS. LOPEZ:  I would believe that the answer to that is yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That causes a bit of an alarm.


MS. LOPEZ:  That doesn’t mean the person would receive an exemption.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, but the fact that it’s exemptible is the discussion here.  And I’m not talking about somebody who – because the example is always given – is convicted of marijuana when they smoked in high school.  Those are misdemeanors.


Okay.  That’s all I needed to know.  I don’t want to be the sole person raising these questions.  Let me go through a couple of other points here.  I know Department of Justice is going to join us soon, so I welcome walking us through the maze of exemptible and nonexemptible.  I know we’ve got a list here somewhere, but I’ve got too much paper to go through it at the moment.


Let me ask another question.  I think you’ve addressed the supervisorial and oversight functions over the exemption-granting process, and you have outlined a number of policies that have been changed, which I think is a very good response, at least to look a little more closely at those that are exemptible and have been waived or exempted.


Regarding nonviolent and nonsex-related felonies, which I raised earlier, right now it’s the sex-related or the violent-related felonies that are not exemptible, generally speaking.


That’s correct – I’m hearing from Justice.


So, for the nonviolent, nonsex-related felonies, should some of these crimes be treated differently – let me ask your opinion, Ms. Lopez – in a different way from the violent sex-related felonies?  Should there be a washout period, for example, of these less offensive felonies, maybe ten years, as ACLU has recommended or suggested?


MS. LOPEZ:  I think that’s very appropriate for a legislative discussion in terms of at what point do you want to say that we would no longer receive information about those cases?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask you about the first part of the question.  Do you think that there is some nonviolent, nonsex-related felonies that are currently exemptible that should not be exemptible?


MS. LOPEZ:  I think that if there were a legislator that wanted to work on this area, that we would be very happy to work with them.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, there’s no position by the Department on that.


MS. LOPEZ:  I think this is something that we would want to look at, so we would be willing to look at this.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m kind of concerned about the examples that I cited earlier.  


Would you like to say something, Ms. Howle?


MS. HOWLE:  I wanted to make one comment related to this.  One thing that may assist the committee, one thing that we did during the course of the audit is my chief counsel, in my office, looked at the Education Code to see how the exemption process works for teachers, and what we found is that the restrictions are much tighter in the Education Code.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Yes, they’re all the nonviolent, nonsex-related.


MS. HOWLE:  Well, in fact, an example we have in the report is that a potential public school teacher with a controlled substance conviction cannot receive an exemption for at least five years after going through rehabilitation.  So, there may be some things in the Education Code that may be of assistance to the committee.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Right, and that happens at teacher credentialing rather than the employment place; although, if there’s a subsequent hit after that, then that will also show up.  I’m familiar with this because I did the not-all-school-employees background check bill and discovered the redemption provision, essentially, that rests with CTC (Teacher Credentialing), which is my understanding.  And that’s upon credentialing that that is available to a teacher.  But I don’t think it’s available to nonteacher employees.  


Why doesn’t the Department of Justice come forward and walk through the various levels of background checks, or whomever it is from the Department.


But I think you’re right.  I’m not making the policy, but that is one area that Public Safety Committee should look at, I suspect.


MS. LOPEZ:  The Governor’s Office has directed us to carefully review the exemption process as it’s currently operating and to determine if we can make further improvements in it.  So, I think these questions are ones that we will be taking under advisement through this process.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


Senator Figueroa, I don’t want to monopolize these questions.


Why don’t you introduce yourself?


MS. TINA MEDICH:  I’m Tina Medich.  I’m the assistant bureau chief in the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Information.


MS. DEBBIE HESSE:  I am Debbie Hesse, assistant bureau chief for the Bureau of Criminal Information and Analysis.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’re moving right into the next topic area, and this is “Problems With Background Checks and Subsequent Arrest Information.”  Maybe you can go ahead and go into your presentation, and if Ms. Lopez or Ms. Howle want to add anything else to this topic area that wasn’t already presented, you should do so after Ms. Medich as well as Ms. Hesse.


MS. MEDICH:  I didn’t have a specific presentation to make.  I was here mainly to respond to questions the committee had.  I understand that you did have some questions or concerns about the reporting of criminal justice information into our database?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Yes.


MS. MEDICH:  I know that the number of 30 percent underreporting has been tossed around, and while it’s possible that there was that kind of lack of reporting some time ago, whenever the Department becomes aware that information is missing from a file, we always chase that information.  So, if we receive a disposition and we don’t have a corresponding arrest, we have a staff that goes out and tries to obtain that information.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So meanwhile, an employee in a child care setting is employed, unlike a school setting where they can’t get hired until the background check is completed.


MS. LOPEZ:  That is correct.  The fingerprints have to be submitted before a person starts to work, and they can go to work pending the background check process.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You don’t have a 72-hour turnaround time like school employees?


MS. LOPEZ:  With the advent of the Live Scan technology, the turnaround for the fingerprint information from DOJ has improved quite dramatically.


MS. MEDICH:  They have a two-week turnaround time in which—


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Is that in statute?


MS. MEDICH:  Yes.  It is true that approximately 87 percent of the submissions we receive from DSS, we’re able to respond within—


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Four hours.


MS. MEDICH:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Or less than a day.


MS. MEDICH:  Yes, we know that it’s between one and three days, and there’s a lot of things that can make that process take a little longer.  If the applicant hits on any kind of criminal record, we’re mandated by case law to go in and – we call it “sanitizing,” and it’s redacting out various information.  That’s a manual process.  It has to be.  It can’t be automated.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But because the law doesn’t require you to do it within 72 hours—


MS. MEDICH:  I would say that about 90 to 95 percent of the time we can respond within the two weeks.  In those cases where we have missing information, we have to go out and chase it.  


DSS, fortunately in this case, has the second broadest dissemination criteria.  The only one that’s broader is law enforcement.  So, in certain instances we are able to release less than complete information to them, especially for those more serious crimes.  If we have an arrest on one of their more serious crimes, we sometimes release partial information to them while we’re chasing other information.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, if we more finely tuned the nonexemptible and got rid of – and Public Safety Committee has to make this decision – frivolous or not essential kinds of past convictions, you would have a shorter list to go through.


MS. MEDICH:  We don’t operate by lists.  We handle every background investigation the same way, or every criminal history record check the same way.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But the turnaround time might be – you might get to a hundred percent within three days.


MS. MEDICH:  No, that will never happen because as long as there’s any hit rate, there has to be manual intervention; and whenever there’s manual intervention, somebody has to go in and sanitize the record.  There will always be a bit of a delay.  I can’t believe that we would ever get below a week turnaround time.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I guess what I’m concerned about is the two-week.


MS. MEDICH:  Are you referring to this document?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No.  How do we justify a two-week period in which an employee could be employed, in which they could have been convicted of a nonexemptible crime, and that employee is at a child care setting and it takes two weeks to find out that they shouldn’t be there, either as a nonexemptible or as an exemptible but not exempted crime?  What’s the rationale for the two-week?  Shouldn’t it be a shorter period of time?  If we did nothing to change the law on the exemptible or nonexemptible crimes, is it right to say that even in some cases an infant or a preschooler should be in a more vulnerable situation than children that go into a school?


MS. MEDICH:  Ms. Lopez is probably better equipped to respond to the question about safety.  I can tell you what the process is for processing the criminal history checks.  But again, when we have case law that precludes us from releasing it, our hands are somewhat tied, and there will still continue to be a manual component to that process.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, I appreciate it.  You’ve covered your presentation very well.  I’m just troubled and thinking out loud.  The employee that was on the school site in Sacramento who had been convicted of murder and who was on the school site for three days is when he killed the young woman, Michelle Montoya. 


Maybe it never happens in a child care setting, maybe it hasn’t happened yet, and maybe it never will, but we need to reconcile the policy discrepancies we have in the law, I guess, in terms of the timeline to turn around the information and prohibit an employee from being employed until the background check clears.  In this instance, it’s not the case, and that’s the dilemma here.


MS. LOPEZ:  I can tell you that we review the information from Justice daily, and we screen those and do a triage to look to see if there are any nonexemptible crimes on that list, and if there are any, then we immediately call the care facility and tell them that individual is out.  Now, those people with nonexemptible crimes represent less than one percent of all of them, but I agree with you, to each one of those is one that we are really concerned about.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I don’t know why the two-week turnaround time, if we have the technology now with Live Scan, as we do, to do it in a shorter period of time.


MS. MEDICH:  Keep in mind that 93 percent of them we’re able to turn around in one to three days.  There’s a much smaller number that are taking up to two weeks, and those, again, are those instances where you have a hit against a criminal record.  As long as there’s a hit rate with this applicant group, you will always have that delay.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But the fact that they can become employed awaiting the clearance, even if it’s only seven percent.


Senator Figueroa.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  Senator Ortiz, I appreciate your concern.  We’ve been going through something similar with DOJ regarding security guards.  Security guards were having a real difficulty because we have some of them that have been out there for as long as six months with temporary licenses.  


It’s difficult because, first of all, with child care providers, they pay for their own application, and then on top of that, they also have to pay for their vaccinations, for tuberculosis.  You start adding all of these costs and it’s very difficult.


An additional problem that I’ve been finding out is that there’s only certain times where Live Scan is available for people, and that, also, you have to manually do the follow-up.  If they do find something, then somebody has to manually do the follow-up and make the phone calls.  When you make a phone call to a PD, it’s only certain hours that you can make those investigative calls.  Is that correct?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  They’re in schools or in sheriffs’ departments.  They’re in police departments.  They’re in communities.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  There is, there’s a lot of those, but all of them – because we’ve been talking to them also – believe it or not, they’ll tell people yes, the legislation is in place, but we’re only going to answer these questions between this and this time.


MS. MEDICH:  What you’re referring to, Senator Figueroa, is mainly the courts, and because of their workload and their limited staffing, there are some jurisdictions that only allow us to call certain days of the week during certain hours.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But that’s not Live Scan.  


MS. MEDICH:  No, that is not Live Scan.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s when you get a hit and you need to go further.


MS. MEDICH:  Correct.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  But if Live Scan’s available in certain police departments, they only give certain times also.  Correct?


MS. MEDICH:  That is true too.  They’re two different issues, but you’re correct on both.  We don’t control the Live Scan network.  A lot of them require appointments and only operate certain days of the week and only between certain hours, that is true, and that makes it difficult for certain applicant groups – like the security guards who operate very different hours – to sometimes get to an available Live Scan site in a timely manner.


The other issue you were speaking to is calling the courts in.  One of the things that we’ve done to improve that, and over the last two years we’ve made a huge improvement in that area, and that is, we’ve got direct access into the court systems.  Even on our off hours, we have established a shift on nights so they can go in and directly look into the court records and try to obtain that disposition information.  We’ve also got 88 percent of the – excuse me, I think it’s 80 percent – of all the dispositions coming in electronically.  So, they’re updated to our criminal history system in a much more timely manner and much more complete information.  We’ve made great improvements in getting that information, but there will always be those delays when you have a criminal history record.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  The question is, of the seven percent that do have either nonexemptible criminal histories or exemptible but probably are not going to be exempted by a supervisor that looks closely, of those seven percent, whether it’s due to unavailability of Live Scan or court delay in forwarding information that is essential for that conviction or arrest, if there is a subsequent employee situation, is it a good policy for us to say that that employee could be in place up to two weeks?  That’s the policy question.  


Security guards are a very important issue, if they’re security guards to children, but if they’re security guards to a business at night, that’s a different issue.  I think when you have kids in a school setting or in a child care setting, we should have the highest level of turnaround time.  


We’ve increased the Live Scan systems, I know, each year we’ve gone back.  We did five million the first year when I was in the Assembly and then subsequently.  We worked out those issues with local police and fire and school districts, having the Live Scan on site – excuse me, police and sheriffs’ departments.  We actually have a network in place.  Quite frankly, some of them are just simply resistant to stay open later, but that’s not a legislative remedy.  That’s about people being educated how to access that and putting the pressure on them to, in fact, do that.  


I’ll leave it at that.  I think if it’s only seven percent, even if nothing ever happens, the question is, are we going to have a lesser standard for child care settings in terms of an employee not stepping onto an employment site until they’ve been cleared and theoretically working up to two weeks?


MS. LOPEZ:  I think that’s a very legitimate question.  


Additionally, I’d like to mention, also, that we have Live Scans available at many of our licensing offices, and we have a toll-free number that people can call so they can make an appointment for the Live Scan process.  Close to 90 percent of all of our fingerprints now are being processed through Live Scan, either through our own sites or through those sites Justice has set up in many different places.


I agree, that doesn’t answer the question that you raised, and I think it’s an important one.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Ms. Hesse, did you have a presentation?


MS. HESSE:  I was here to answer questions that you might have about the Child Abuse Central Index background check, which parallels criminal history, except it’s a different type of database.  Also, the entry comes through Live Scan.  Our hit rate is about 2 percent.  We’re required by case law and by regulation to contact the agency that originally submitted the child abuse summary report to DOJ to make sure that report’s there, and once they confirm that, then we notify Department of Social Services, or whatever agency asked us, and the applicant simultaneously to let them know that we have a potential hit and that we’re reporting information to Department of Social Services.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And that’s for foster care—


MS. HESSE:  Foster, adoption, employees in a child care center.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And that turnaround time is rarely more than—


MS. HESSE:  Well, for the 2 percent, because we’re going back to the submitting agency, it can be up to 28 days.  But what happens during that 28-day period with most employers, they get a little nervous because they know we can clear people real fast.  We’re not permitted by law to say anything like, “Well, we’ve got a hit,” but most employers, I think, get a little nervous when they don’t get a CACI check right away because it means we have a hit.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, you can’t even say, “We have a hit.”


MS. HESSE:  Not until we’ve confirmed that there’s an investigative file that’s available at a local agency.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s interesting.  We have a lot of children who go into foster care in an emergency situation:  in a receiving home, in a foster emergency placement.


MS. HESSE:  Senator, with regard to what we call “emergency child placement,” the law is different.  In emergency child placement, those are usually done by telephone calls or fax from a social worker to Department of Justice, and we are allowed by law to report that we have a hit.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the more difficult and bigger group would be persons in the process, or having completed the process, to become either foster-adopt parents, mostly—


MS. HESSE:  Right.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Or adoptive parents.  Just direct adoption.  It’s all adoption, even private as well as public.


MS. HESSE:  That’s right, private adoptions come through us also.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But that process is usually one in which a child is not placed until most of that is done or completed.


MS. HESSE:  Well, I’m a former fost-adopt parent, and we couldn’t do the placement until the CACI check had cleared.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay, so in that instance, you don’t have a person who hasn’t been cleared prior to a child being placed.  You’ve got a little bit of a timeline built-in process.


MS. HESSE:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the potential parent pays for that, right?


MS. HESSE:  Yes.  Or the county.  It depends.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It depends if it was a public county adoption.


MS. LOPEZ:  For foster care, we do not charge the parents for the background check process.  That is absorbed.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s correct.  Or there’s a nominal fee of $15 maybe?


MS. HESSE:  I don’t believe that foster parents pay.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


Senator Figueroa?


Let me see whether there are some questions here.  Are the background checks incomplete?  We’re talking about the errors where you get hits or how many people actually submit.  Do you have any sense of how many licensed child care providers are simply not doing background checks on some employees?


MS. LOPEZ:  I believe that since SB 933 was enacted, the compliance rate on background checks has increased significantly.  We did quite a public awareness campaign at that time with all care providers, and we started assessing fines at that point, based on the statute.  Also, it was very, very clear to everyone that people had to have background checks before they start employment.


So, if we do find people, we find them and we treat it as a very serious offense, but I believe that compliance has increased quite a bit.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How is your staffing in the compliance division?  Are you adequately staffed?  How many staff do you have for the whole State of California, and how many licensed child care facilities do we currently have?  How many are seeking licensing in any one month, and how many staff do you have to cover all of the State of California to check the compliance levels?


MS. LOPEZ:  We have the annual visits to centers.  At that point, we check whether we have anybody outstanding that needs a background check.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Are those visits announced?


MS. LOPEZ:  Unannounced.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do you visit every licensed facility once a year?


MS. LOPEZ:  Centers are visited annually, and under statute, family child care homes are visited once every three years, unless we have a complaint, in which we go out within ten days.  So, at that point when we visit, one of the things that we do is look at the background check to make sure everybody in the home or in the center has completed the background check process.  So, we do look at that, and if we have any issues, then we follow up on those immediately.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But the turnaround rate that I’ve heard – and a very important area – you get a lot of turnaround in three years, if it’s once every three years to visit family settings.


MS. LOPEZ:  That’s true, there may be some turnover, but in a family home, the licensee is the one who’s the principal caregiver.  So, the turnover in a family home would be a helper that has been hired to assist the care provider.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Or a family member moving in and out of the house.


MS. LOPEZ:  Right.  Those would be the issues there.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


The 30 percent that are missing from the database, did somebody adequately cover that?  


Are the background checks incomplete?  Are the databases missing 30 percent of the information they should have?  Was that covered already?


MS. MEDICH:  In terms of our arrest information, we believe we’re receiving 95 percent of all the arrests that are occurring throughout the state, and those that we are not receiving are generally cite and release.  They’re generally misdemeanor type crimes.  We’ve even made some improvements in receiving that information.  We believe we’re now getting at least 88 percent of all the dispositions.  And again, whenever we get an arrest and we’re missing the disposition, we will go and try and obtain that to ensure that the record’s complete.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But you don’t get convictions from other states, right?  Unless they go on the FBI index.


MS. MEDICH:  Correct.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But not all states actually have systems that can feed into the FBI index.  Not all states have a Live Scan.


MS. MEDICH:  That’s true, but the FBI check will check all other state databases.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But it’s only as good as that particular state’s database system is.  My understanding is that there are many states that don’t have that level of sophistication.  Some will say our system has gone a long way in a very short period of time; but again, it’s dependent on the quality of that system in that particular state.  We can’t really fix that in California, but I just want us to know that there’s a lot of challenges in trying to get a real sense about state convictions particularly.


I think we’ve covered a lot of this already.  Are there points that any of you would like to make?


MS. HOWLE:  One point that hasn’t been discussed, and perhaps Justice can comment on this.  One of the findings that we had in our audit report was, in addition to background checks, the Department’s process for reporting subsequent criminal activity.  For example, someone went through a background check, was cleared, is now working in a facility; however, there’s been subsequent criminal activity.  We had some concerns that that process was not working as well as it should.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You’re right, and I think I heard Ms. Lopez or somebody say that that system is now in place.


MS. LOPEZ:  It has been in place all along, and I think Justice can talk about improvements in that system in recent years.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask Ms. Howle to give us a very clear characterization of what you found in the audit regarding that system not being in place.


MS. HOWLE:  Certainly.


We were looking at the process that the Department of Justice uses to notify Department of Social Services of crimes that individuals commit after the Department has gone through the background check and they’re working in a facility.  We pulled a very small sample – nine cases – and found that there was some subsequent criminal activity in four of those instances.  The Department of Justice had not notified DSS that this individual working in a facility had committed a crime.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Wait.  Department of Justice had not notified?


MS. HOWLE:  Right.  The finding is relative to the Department of Justice and its system for reporting to DSS that a subsequent crime has been committed.


In response to the audit – I’d like to give that, and then I’ll defer to Justice – they indicated that by December of 2001, it would modify its process to enable staff to work and track in chronological order individuals previously granted access to child care facilities who now have subsequently committed a crime, and that, in the long run, they intended to redesign their automated system to allow this to happen more quickly.  That was the response a year ago.


I’m going to defer to the Department.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’re anxiously awaiting an explanation.


MS. MEDICH:  It’s a manual inventory tracking system, and we have implemented that.  That gives us the ability to make sure that they’re worked in a first-in, first-out basis.  We also have a way of tracking them through the system.  This is one of the last manual processes in the Department, and, again, it’s related to case law which requires us to ensure that that arrest is active before we can provide the information to any applicant agency.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But what do you do differently for the school janitor that is cleared when he’s hired in a school – he or she – and then subsequently is picked up for, I don’t know, aggravated assault and is arrested, not convicted?  That automatically goes to a school district, is what I’m told.


MS. MEDICH:  That’s true.  That’s a local requirement.  The locals do contact the school directly, that’s true.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And we don’t have a comparable local notice to a child care provider?


MS. LOPEZ:  Not that I am aware of.


MS. MEDICH:  I believe schools are the only ones that have that requirement.  It’s the only one that I’m aware of.


Our subsequent arrests are all handled the same way.  They come in but they all have to be manually handled.  The 93 percent that I told you could be turned around in one to three days?  What happens is those are coming in, generally, over Live Scan, so it’s an electronic process.  It comes in; it searches the database; it finds nothing; and an electronic response goes back out to DSS.  That’s why that could happen so quickly.  With a subsequent arrest, somebody has to look at that document, call the law enforcement agency, and it may have already been referred to the DA.  The DA could have rejected it.  There are a number of things that could have happened during a very short time period.  They have to call and make sure that that is still active before releasing it to the applicant agency; otherwise, we may be releasing arrest information on somebody who was dismissed at the law enforcement level or the DA chose not to file charges.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  Ms. Ortiz?  I want to follow up along what you said.  How would someone, after being arrested – would you then provide that information, that I work for a school district?  They would have to volunteer that.  How would you know that they work for a school district to report that?


MS. MEDICH:  That is not our requirement.  That is a local requirement.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  How would the local police know?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It is the requirement under the law now.  They do it, but I don’t know how they do it.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  But how would they know that information?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  They know the arrest.  There’s certain types of arrests, if they fall in the prohibited arrests, that trigger a requirement for that local, either data collection or police department, to then refer.  Whether or not they’re a school employee, I think that they are finding a mechanism of doing that because they’ve managed to work that system.  I don’t know how, and we don’t have local police and maybe we could, but that’s the requirement for school employees now.  I’m trying to figure out logistically how they do it and whether or not that would be comparable.


MS. LOPEZ:  I would also like to mention that we have from time to time been contacted by local police who are aware—


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Tell me how they find out.


MS. LOPEZ:  If they are called to a home where it’s evident that children are being cared for, they will call us.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I see.


MS. LOPEZ:  Or it may be that a complaint is made directly to police, and they will contact us.  Or we will contact police and work with them, but sometimes it’s the other way around.  We do have, I would say, pretty good relations with police departments, so they know to call us and vice-a-versa.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We should find out some more information, though, on how the trigger is for local police on the school employee piece.  It’s a good question.  Somehow they manage to do it because I’ve heard that it’s in place.  Maybe it varies jurisdiction by jurisdiction, but that is the law.


Let me go back to this question again.  The system that you have now addressed, since the audit was conducted, to provide notice, I assume, of a specific prohibited crime – or any crime?


MS. MEDICH:  Any crime.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Any crime to the child care provider.  How does Department of Justice know a subsequent arrest occurs?


MS. MEDICH:  We flag our database when it’s a retainable applicant print, and not all of them are retainable.  What happens is, when that arrest comes in and it gets updated to the automated criminal history system—


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How does the arrest come in?  It goes to the local police and they report it.  How often do they report those?  What does a small county do that has a sheriff’s department that picks someone up versus an urban area?


MS. MEDICH:  If they submit via Live Scan, we could get the arrest while the person’s still sitting there being booked; so it’s real time.  It’s 5 percent of all arrests that are coming in manually.  It’s a very small percentage, but I still believe that they’re sending them in regularly.  I think some years ago there might have been delays.  They might have waited until they got a lot of arrest cards together and sent them in, but that’s no longer the case and has not been the case for years now.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, 95 percent of the subsequent arrests of precleared employees are coming in through Live Scan.


MS. MEDICH:  Ninety-five percent of all arrests are coming in that way.  Not all of them are a subsequent arrest notification.  Not all of them require that.  Only if there’s an applicant cycle on that criminal history record.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  So, of those employees that you get a hit on, your turnaround time from receipt of that information to notice to the child care provider is, how long?


MS. MEDICH:  I don’t have statistics on that, but again, it’s because there’s manual verification.  They make the phone calls and then they send it out.  We strive to get that out as quickly as possible, but I don’t have numbers on that for you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It would be helpful to start looking at that.


What do you tell a child care provider if it’s a prohibited nonexemptible crime?


MS. MEDICH:  We do not tell the provider.  We tell DSS or any agency that’s authorized to receive back the information.  We simply notify them of the arrest.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And what does DSS do with that information?


MS. LOPEZ:  Depending on what the arrest is for and how serious it is—


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s assume it’s a nonexemptible arrest, not a conviction.


MS. LOPEZ:  We would immediately begin investigating that, and we could order the individual out of the facility based on that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, there’s discretion on a nonexemptible arrest whether or not you do anything?


MS. LOPEZ:  Well, if we don’t have a conviction, we have to investigate it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Correct.  The law says nothing on subsequent arrest regarding child care.  


MS. LOPEZ:  If a person were arrested for a nonexemptible offense, then we would be out there immediately.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Out there, meaning?


MS. LOPEZ:  Meaning to visit the facility and find out what’s going on.  We could very well likely order that person out of the facility.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the turnaround time, it’s unclear how long it takes you to process the manual, and immediately means as soon as you get it, you’re out there.  Within ten days, five days?


MS. LOPEZ:  Oh, no.  I would say we would call the facility, call the local licensing office the same day.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  All right.  That’s something, probably, that warrants further review by whomever is going to do the legislation.  Not myself.


Senator Figueroa.



SENATOR FIGUEROA:  I’m just curious.  If a person is taken from the facility, do you have someone to substitute?  Do you provide another child care worker for that facility, or the facility just gets closed down?


MS. LOPEZ:  The facility would be required to hire another person or find another person to provide assistance.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  Do you give them any warning time?  To find qualified child care workers is difficult nowadays.


MS. LOPEZ:  And I do believe that that could be an issue, so we really have to weigh what is most important at that point.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  You would do that?  You would weigh that?


MS. LOPEZ:  Weigh in the sense that if it’s a serious issue, we are going to order the person out of the facility regardless.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  If it’s rape of a minor, they can exercise their discretion to have that person removed.  I suspect that they would exercise that right.


MS. LOPEZ:  That’s right.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  If it’s an arrest for DUI or spousal abuse, you’ve got to balance should you leave them there in a child care setting or not?


MS. LOPEZ:  That’s correct.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But there are no guidelines to the discretion is the issue here.  And yet, we need child care providers everywhere, absolutely.  I think some of the arrests ought to be a higher level of concern.


MS. LOPEZ:  And they are.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But it’s not in statute.  Again, it’s discretionary.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  (Inaudible)


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Not for rape of a minor.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  (Inaudible)


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, that’s not in the law.  Not for a subsequent arrest.


SENATOR FIGUEROA:  (Inaudible)


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No.  Employees are hired.  They get cleared.  They’ve never had any crimes.  They work there.  They then get arrested for raping a minor.  The law does not say that that person has to be removed.  What Ms. Lopez is saying is “we may.”


MS. LOPEZ:  I would say we would in those circumstances.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But the law doesn’t require that.  Just so we know.  Not a subsequent arrest.  The discretion rests with the Department.  I’m sure the Department exercises it, but what if it’s a gray area?  They beat up their wife or they beat up their husband and they’re in the hospital near death.


MS. LOPEZ:  Again, this is where we would look to the police report to determine pretty much how we would assess this situation, and the police report would provide information that would help us, I think, very clearly make that decision.  If a person had put somebody in the hospital, then I don’t think there would be much deciding to be done there.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the law doesn’t say for a subsequent arrest is the point that I’m saying.  This is the difficulty.  We have a very burdened child care system, and the law is not on point when they’re arrested after they’ve already been hired.


Mr. Hailey wants to correct that.


MR. HAILEY:  No, just add to the fact that in weighing things – what my understanding is – the Department is looking at the health and safety of children, period.  They are not weighing whether they can find a substitute or not.  That wouldn’t enter the equation.  The responsibility is to provide for the basic health and safety of children, period.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You’re absolutely right.  I think they probably are on the side of protecting the children even if it creates a further burden on an overburdened system, and that’s the dilemma we have here.


I wish our people from Public Safety Committee were joining us.  


Sergeant, could you see if any Members from Public Safety Committee are going to be joining us?  Maybe Mr. Burton, Mr. Vasconcellos, Mr. Sher, Mr. Polanco, and Mr. McPherson.  


I’ve got a meeting at 3:20, so let’s go through the rest.  Maybe I’ll just hold off on questions.


Thank you, all.  You’ve been really helpful.  I apologize that we don’t have other Members here.  My staff has worked very hard on this, and I know the Public Safety Committee staff weighed in.  The value of this is for the people who are not here.  I apologize.  And thank you for your good work.


Thanks, Senator Figueroa, for joining us.  I do appreciate it.


Let’s hear from the next group of participants, many who are still here.  Others who will join us are Ms. Siegel, Chris Clearey, Dolores Meade, Cathy Barankin, Kerry Woodward, and Wendy Burri, as well as Ms. Howle and Ms. Lopez.  This is addressing the privacy issues.


Members, prior to the CBS lawsuit, the state maintained that it was prohibited by law from releasing information on individuals with criminal histories for whom the state has granted exemptions to work in child care.  The CBS case has resulted in the state, upon request, providing the names of individuals who have been grated exemptions, which, by the way, we chose not to do when the information was provided to this committee.  We have the information, but we don’t have the names of the individuals.  


In response to the Orange County Register’s series, the Governor ordered providers to inform parents if any employee in the facility has an exemption.  The Governor also required those providers to make licensing inspection reports available to parents, which have not been readily available as required by law, according to the Orange County Register.


Finally, Senator Dunn has introduced a bill – and I was hoping he’d join us as well – to allow parents to learn the crimes for which these individuals have been convicted by contacting the Department of Social Services.


So, let’s hear from whomever it is that would like to begin.  


Ms. Howle, do you have a separate presentation for this?


MS. HOWLE:  I think I need to be very brief because we completed the audit prior to the KCBS lawsuit regarding the Public Records Act.  Actually, what I’d just like to mention is we recommended in the audit report that the Department should work with the Legislature to require disclosure of criminal history exemptions, but what we were talking about, we said the two parties should determine the types of criminal histories and the length of time this requirement should apply to.  We were suggesting, for example, disclosing for five years that an exemption was granted.  You know, some kind of timeframe.  Look at the types of crimes.  When we were putting together our recommendation, we did consider privacy issues, and that was part of our rationale for the way we couched our recommendation.  So, we wanted to make sure we noted that in our comments today.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


Ms. Lopez, do you have anything else to add on this topic?


MS. LOPEZ:  I think that we have been complying with the terms of the CBS lawsuit.  We began implementing that as soon as that decision was handed down, so that we are providing information upon request about anyone who has an exemption or any care facilities where exemptions are in place.  We are also working to ensure that parents have information that they need in order to make informed choices about child care, and we think that’s very important.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ve been joined by Senator Dunn, and I thank him.  Hopefully, he’ll engage in some of the questions.  I want to welcome him and allow him to say some opening comments.


SENATOR JOSEPH DUNN:  Madam Chair, thank you very much.  My apologies for not being able to get here until now.  We just finished Sub 4.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Does that mean Senator Polanco will be joining us?  Oh, okay.


SENATOR DUNN:  On the advice of counsel, Madam Chair—


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you for joining us, Senator Dunn.


Had you completed?  Thank you.  So, the Department is complying with the decision.


MS. LOPEZ:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Ms. Siegel, I think you’re the next presenter here.


MS. PATTI SIEGEL:  Thank you, Senator Ortiz and Senator Dunn.  Thank you very much for what is a thoughtful oversight hearing and a very welcomed hearing today and, I think, an opportunity to bring a lot more important information to this process.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think all of you should save your testimony, however.  You’ll probably have to do it again in a Public Safety Committee hearing.


MS. SIEGEL:  We were in Public Safety yesterday, and we’ll be prepared.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  If they take action.


MS. SIEGEL:  Right.


Per Senator Figueroa’s comment earlier, I am the director of the Statewide Child Care Resource and Referral Network, and it is our privilege and job in every county of the state to help facilitate, encourage, and support parent-provider relationships in child care.  It is a big job, and it’s a job that we’ve been doing under the auspices of the State Department of Education since 1976.  


Our members are very concerned that the efforts to date to look at the very complicated issues that have been discussed this afternoon have been largely, and so far, in reaction to news coverage; not in reaction to what actually happens to children, families, and parents on a day-to-day basis.


And so, one of the reasons that we so welcome this oversight hearing is a chance to bring the temperature down a little bit and respond to this in the thoughtful way that I think is happening today.


SENATOR DUNN:  But note you’ve been left in my hands now.  (Laughter)


MS. SIEGEL:  Yes, I understand that.


SENATOR DUNN:  Just thought I would throw that out there.  Go ahead.


MS. SIEGEL:  When alarming news hits, like the news that appeared in the Orange County Register, all of us – and certainly you at the top of the list, Senator Dunn – want to respond and fix it.  And that’s true for those of us in the resource and referral world.  It’s true for community care licensing.  


I think the issue is:  How do we fix it?  And in trying to fix it, do we put so many new burdens on a system that is already fragile, underpaid, has huge turnovers – 75 percent, predominantly female – do we put such a huge burden on that system to fix the teeny-tiny end of it that it gets out of whack?


As R&R counselors, it is our job to inform and discuss with every parent that calls us looking for child care what is licensing.  I would say that, if I had my way, rather than doing the new poster that Community Care Licensing has done, I would do what the state of Texas does, which is laminate on one side in English and one side in Spanish – per Senator Figueroa’s earlier question – exactly how the licensing system works.  I think we have a little overview of it here.  It would certainly help us, but that’s our job as R&R counselors, is to explain to you as a parent what are your protections.


What I’ve found in my counseling of parents over thirty years is that people want to trust the licensing system.  They want to know what it does, they want to know how it does it, and they want to have faith that it works.  We believe, as the R&R Network, that the impetus on all of us now is to fix this system, to make sure that there are no cracks, but not to do the quick fixes, whether it’s a poster that’s red, white, and blue, or whether it’s, what seems to be very simple, letting parents know what the crimes are.  We believe that the system needs to be tightened and fixed in a way that is not on the backs of parents and providers.


We are encouraged today by some of the suggestions and some of the information that’s come forward.  As your committees consider where we’re going to go from here, I would ask you to focus on the following:


One, please consider not the “what-ifs” but the “what-ares.”  Certainly, we want to protect against the what-ifs, but if the what-ifs so overburden what we actually know about this industry, I’m afraid that we’re going to really constrain it.


I’m very interested to know, in terms of the crimes that have been exempted, what proof do we have anywhere that children in those homes or centers have been harmed?


I’m encouraged by some suggestions today.  First of all – and I hope you have a copy of this, Senator Dunn – the information that’s been provided about   all – 100 percent – of the exemptions granted in Orange County in 2001 is very informative and I think leads us in some directions that would be helpful.  Specifically, we can see that 94 percent of the crimes – all crimes reported in Orange County – were misdemeanors.  Does that suggest, or could you please look at, that perhaps misdemeanors should not be on the list of things that we’re looking at so closely?  Or, if there are some special misdemeanors that you all in the public safety world know more about than I do, then let’s look at that.  But I’m encouraged to see that 94 percent of these crimes were misdemeanors.


Upon review, I think we could consider, per your earlier question, Senator Ortiz, are there nonexemptible crimes that should be added to this system to tighten it up?  All of us want children to be protected.  None of us want inappropriate, unsafe people caring for children.  But I’d say put the burden on the system.  Tighten up the system and make sure that people don’t fall through the cracks.  Don’t ask parents, don’t ask providers to double-guess, double-check a system that they want and need to trust.


And finally, when you look at the years of convictions – and I’ve seen this for the first time myself – but it looks to me like 25 plus 19 plus 23 percent of the crimes were all ten years and more.  Maybe we ought to consider a moratorium of ten years or less.  


Senator Dunn, this is information that we didn’t have yesterday, but I think with this information in hand, I’m hopeful that we can move forward in a way where, perhaps, there might be amendments to your bill.


And finally, there was a lot of discussion about Live Scan, and I’m going to let my colleague, Dolores Meade, speak to that more specifically.  We desperately need more Live Scan machines, and we need Live Scan machines to be accessible to child care providers.  We need them in every R&R, and they need to be free, because if we want to speed up this process and we want people to go through it faster, than let’s put our money where our mouth is and let’s make those machines and let’s make that process easily accessible to anyone who wants to check a potential employee.


Thank you for your attention, and I hope that today’s hearing will really open the door for a more thoughtful, coordinated response.  


And I want to say one other thing.  I think that the response to date has been confusing and contradictory because we have been rushing to find answers.  I think whether it’s the first letter that went out from DSS, unfortunately, in response to the Governor’s letter, which was particularly misinterpreted in a Spanish-speaking community, there’s just a lot of fear that you’re going to hear from other people, and we don’t want to build our child care system in the State of California on fear.  We want to build it on protections and safety.


I think that Mr. Hailey’s suggestion that perhaps we look at an annual list of the crimes but not the individuals, I think maybe that posted on a web site would go far in terms of reassuring parents about who really is a part of our child care system and reassuring them that it’s less than 3 percent of all providers who have been exempted.  Let them see for themselves not the individual names, not the “scarlet C” for criminal conviction, but the real, actual What were these crimes?  This field cannot afford to be branded with a scarlet C.  We are predominantly women.  We make barely minimum wage.  And you can only know what an enormous earthquake this has been on our very fragile system.


Thank you.


SENATOR DUNN:  If I may, Madam Chair.  Thank you.


I’ll try, Ms. Siegel, to avoid this being a fight over my bill.  Let me make a few comments, because I think this is the first public forum where we’ve been able to engage in a discussion; not just over the bill that we have pending before Public Safety.


I think, Ms. Siegel, if you look at our respective positions, referring to    yours – not you personally, but as a representative on behalf of the organization – and mine, they are aligned about 99 percent, with one exception.  It’s your opposition to the bill which I think is, as you know, misplaced, and I’ve made no secret of it.  Your criticism is at an entirely different issue; an issue in which I agree with you, and the issue can be divided into a few categories, first and foremost.


One of the primary arguments in opposition to the bill is that “It will have a chilling effect, and it’s difficult to find employees for child care centers now, and, oh my gosh, this bill could make it even worse.”  I have acknowledged readily that that is theoretically a risk that could happen; perhaps even slightly in practice.  But the real focus point of that argument is that we, as a legislature, do not place child care in a high enough priority on the budget scale so that we can adequately pay child care providers in a combination of private and public sector funds; and that while every one of us, I’m sure, on the campaign trail says, “Child care is important and I will support it all along,” the fact of the matter is, when budget decisions are made, especially in a difficult year like now, guess who never even hits the radar screen?  Child care.


So, the opposition to the bill is really directed, first and foremost, right there.  Right there. 


Second, as very eloquently put in each of the hearings we’ve had thus far – and sometimes John and I get a little contentious over it – Senator Vasconcellos has been very eloquent in his frustrations over the underlying process; things, Ms. Siegel, that you’ve just raised:  Should some of the crimes that are currently under the exemptible category be moved to, what I called yesterday, the “freebie category”?  That’s a legitimate debate, and I know that’s what part of this hearing is about.  We should engage in that debate.


I would encourage your organization to make your own proposal on what ought to be freebie and exempted.  Should the exempt list be narrowed or expanded?  Should the absolute bar list be narrowed or expanded?  You come before us and advocate yourself as the ones that are probably most knowledgeable about all the pluses and minuses of the system because you’re there in the trenches day in and day out, but, as of yet, no proposals.


MS. SIEGEL:  Could I respond to that?


SENATOR DUNN:  Please.


MS. SIEGEL:  I believe that today is the first day that all of us have had the kind of detailed information that would help my organization and you and all of us to make the kind of thoughtful response that my organization has been calling on from March 17th on.  We would welcome the opportunity to do that, but we have not had, for example, this detail from Orange County in terms of what was really exempted last year.  I feel much more knowledgeable today, much more prepared to move with my committee and others, to think about what would make sense, because what we all want is the best protections for children in this state but not in a way that erodes what is essential to any good child care arrangement, which is parent-provider trust.


SENATOR DUNN:  We’re getting there.  Hold on.


You met with me months ago, prior to the Register’s series of articles coming out, to talk to me about your concerns regarding that, and, also, that there are other improvements that could be made.  We’re months later and I haven’t seen anything.


I agree, your organization is probably in the best position to make recommendations to this Legislature, and with all due respect, Ms. Siegel, you didn’t need this information to make those recommendations.


Here we sat for a long time until the court system said the state was acting illegally by not even disclosing the existence of exemption.  You heard me yesterday, and I know this is not a fight over my bill today.  The proposal that we have moving forward, hopefully, out of Public Safety, is very narrow, and it’s in response to the CBS lawsuit.  It’s not in response necessarily to the Orange County Register articles.  Yes, they zeroed in the spotlight on this issue, but it was created by the fact that the state was acting illegally and not providing the existence of exemption information.  Now that we’ve got to do that, with all due respect, it places the parent in an extraordinarily difficult position.


The legislation is not an attempt to curtail the operations of a child care facility.  It’s not trying to cause a chilling effect.  In fact, you heard some of the testimony, and I think you’re even aware of it.  How many parents, even after the press over the past couple of months, have ever even asked?  Not many.  Any?  Zero.  After all the hoopla that, oh my gosh, the ceiling was going to collapse on child care facilities because employees were going to flee in vast numbers, the answer is zero.  Zero.


I’m almost finished, Madam Chair, because I know you want to move forward.


To me, it is important to have these discussions, but I don’t think these discussions should be used as an opportunity to address the rather difficult position parents have been placed in due to the CBS decision.  And what I have said to folks who have asked me is, look, if someone wants to carry legislation to fundamentally change the underlying system, whether it’s the what’s exempted and what’s not exempted, etc., great.  But the legislation that I’m carrying, in my humble view, should still move forward to get parents out of that very difficult spot they are currently in.  And if it takes two years, based on information such as this as you cite, Ms. Siegel, to come up with a proposal that would fundamentally change that underlying process, great, but let’s get the parents out of the bad spot they’re in right now.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you, Senator Dunn.


SENATOR DUNN:  Thank you, Madam Chair.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I do hope you’ll try to stay with us through the duration of this.  We are actually on the privacy issues.


Ms. Siegel, had you completed your presentation?  Okay.  So, I think the next speaker is Ms. Chris Clearey.


MS. CHRIS CLEAREY:  Yes.  I’m Chris Clearey, the managing attorney at the Child Care Law Center.  In order to speed this along, I’ll address specifically the privacy issue, which we do have concerns.  


It’s difficult, Senator Dunn, to separate your bill from the Governor’s recent actions and the CBS lawsuit.


SENATOR DUNN:  Which you know I oppose the Governor’s—


MS. CLEAREY:  I do know that.


I believe that the California Supreme Court has put limits in the case of Brisco v. The Reader’s Digest on how long a conviction should be a public matter.  In the Brisco case, the Supreme Court basically said, “Yes, it’s a public record; yes, it’s a First Amendment issue that’s brought into being here; but you have to weigh it against the public interest,” and there is a strong state interest in the rehabilitation of criminals.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Is the case on point regarding child care?  I haven’t read the Brisco decision.  I don’t have it in front of me.  Maybe you could quickly tell us what the Brisco decision was.


MS. CLEAREY:  The Brisco decision was not a child care setting.  The Brisco was a magazine article on truck hijackings that mentioned the name of somebody who had been involved in a truck hijacking eleven years ago.  He sued for malicious disclosure and privacy invasion.  The Supreme Court basically said, “Well, it’s a First Amendment right, but you do have to go and do a weighing.”


The point that I would like to make is that the DSS process, which protected the disclosure of that information about criminal exemptions, was a recognition that after a certain amount of time and when somebody goes through a rehabilitative process, they recover a privacy right around that.  My point being that, at the very least, there should be time limits, which we would suggest something in the neighborhood of five years.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I know that Senator Dunn wants to comment on that part of it, and then we’ll let you go through your presentation.


SENATOR DUNN:  I do.  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I want to insert one question.


Ms. Clearey, at least from my perspective, that balancing that you’re suggesting needs to be done was done by implication by the CBS decision.  It faced that question.  I know it wasn’t the actual facts of the criminal conviction.  It was the exemption.  But if you look at just disclosing the exemption, I think we all agree that stand, alone, is a worst-case scenario for the parents whose children are there.  By CBS reaching the decision that that disclosure of the exemption must be done, the weighing was done by the court.


MS. CLEAREY:  If I could, Senator Dunn, the CBS lawsuit allowed for the disclosure of exemption information from 1995 forward and not for anything before that.  That, in fact, was a time-limited disclosure, and any consideration by this body of this kind of thing should take into account the fact that people do rehabilitate and want to go on with their lives and not be haunted with that.


The one other thing that I would say is that what specifically concerns us about your bill is that it makes a shift.  We fully support adding any kind of felony this body believes should be added to the nonexemptible list.  We also support knocking misdemeanors that shouldn’t be in there out, but we do not support shifting the burden from the state to the parent.  I mean, basically, “Let the Buyer Beware” is best used for used cars, not for child care, and that’s a big concern.  I think it would be okay for a parent to have the option, not from the provider but from DSS, to get information on anybody that has felonies in the last five years that work in the center.


SENATOR DUNN:  Ms. Clearey, I’ve got to tell you, we’re talking about caring for one’s child.  We’re not talking about a used car.  Maybe I’m wrong, maybe I’m the crazy one – I won’t rule that one out – but when it comes to caring for one’s child, I can’t think of a more pressing situation where a parent wants to know everything and make the decision for him or herself.  This is not a used car.


MS. CLEAREY:  If I could respectfully point out that Senator Ortiz, in the Michelle Montoya School Safety Act, was able to beef up the background screening without getting into the privacy of those people who had gone through the process.


SENATOR DUNN:  Which I don’t have any objection to us having that debate, Ms. Clearey.  The problem is, right now the parents are in a tough spot due to the CBS decision.  That’s all the bill is trying to do.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m going to try to move this along.  I want you to make your point, Ms. Clearey.  Is there more to your presentation you want to make sure gets on the record?  I don’t want to penalize those who have been patient and are going to speak on the other topic areas.


Do you have more?


MS. CLEAREY:  I’m going to pass.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And there’s not going to be questions for a moment, if I can control him.


SENATOR DUNN:  I’ve been silenced.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It’s not about the bill.  It really isn’t.


SENATOR DUNN:  (Inaudible)


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, I know you are.  Thank you for coming.


We have Ms. Meade, who is the next speaker.


MS. DOLORES MEADE:  Thank you.  I’m Dolores Meade.  I’m the state president of the California Child Development Administrators Association.  Our members run approximately 400 programs, both federally and state funded programs, mostly center based, for low-income families.  


We appreciate the situation that we are in, balancing the rights of parents and balancing the right of the staff in our programs.  We do have a much better situation now than we even had five years ago with the advent of Live Scan.  We, as employers in nonprofits and in the school district sector, appreciate that we have better knowledge about who’s working for us; not only who our initial employees are but also those employees who are working for us and have had a clear record clearance and then have been subsequently arrested and convicted of something that gives us a hit and we’re notified.


Our basic issue revolves around the fact of our strong feeling that as parents are notified of people in the facility, that we as employers not be the ones to release the information.  We strongly support that parents should have the right to call DSS to ask of their exemptions in the center, but we reserve the right not to be the ones to release the information.  We want the state to basically manage and release that information.


We also support having something in the center that would say to a parent, “You have the right to call Community Care Licensing to request knowledge if there is someone in the facility with a record clearance.”  We have problems with the idea that every parent in a center would sign a release form saying, “I know that I have the right to do this,” because, again, it raises the specter of fear for parents that something is being withheld from them.


I think that there is a way for the field and the Legislature to partner with this, trying to respect the rights of our staff.  I know that there are many, many contractors who feel that if information is going to be released that you have someone with a conviction in your center with an exemption, that they want to be able to have the parents know what the conviction is because then parents would find out that it’s petty theft eighteen years ago or some very innocuous crime that does not place their child in an unsafe situation.


We feel that we have a better situation now to protect the children in the centers.  We are supportive of any reasonable steps that can be taken that can protect our employees’ rights, the parents’ rights, and also respecting the position that we are in as employers and not releasing the information and having DSS do that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me go back, because I think Ms. Siegel said it earlier, and I’m going to comment because I think it’s important to bring some closure to this piece of it.  The concern is, in order to maintain this very strong relationship with the parents and the providers, that they ought not to be put in the position of disclosing either the existence of a conviction or the nature of that conviction, and that ought to rest with the Department.  And I think Senator Dunn’s bill, in fact, requires that.


MS. MEADE:  Yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Does the Department want to respond to that piece of it?  Because that’s a huge piece that is essential to the trust that I hear is essential to a healthy relationship between the provider and the parents.


MS. LOPEZ:  It’s the Department’s position that that position of trust and the relationship that’s been developed between the care provider and the parent is the reason why the care provider is in the best position to talk with the parent about these issues, as opposed to the care provider getting, perhaps, a notice from the Department mailed to them or having some information provided to them that’s by a third party.  The care provider and that parent see each other every day and talk and have a relationship.  That’s why we feel that the care provider is the best person to provide that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s hear from Senator Dunn because I think he wants to weigh in on this piece of it.


SENATOR DUNN:  Me opinionated?


I disagree with that.  I know Patti and the rest of them know that we’ve struggled over this for the past few weeks, but this is an issue where I side with the representative from child care providers.  Because it is a very sensitive issue, I don’t think there’s any reason why DSS can’t serve in that role.  In fact, as long as the parent knows they have the ability to go to DSS and get the information, this really is an issue that ought to be dealt with at that level between DSS and the parent and not the child care provider, because I do agree, trying to visualize myself as a provider, I would not want to have to be there:


“Well, why did DSS grant an exemption?”  


“I really don’t know.  I don’t know what they reviewed for rehabilitation information,” etc.


The provider is outside of that loop since it was the state that made the decision to grant the exemption in the first place.  You’re in the best position to provide the parent that information, and that’s the way I think it ought to be.


MS. MEADE:  I think the only thing that I would like to add is there’s also the legal ramifications for us.  We could turn around and have a staff member sue us that we had released information we didn’t have the right to release.  If there were legal protections for us as employers to release it, that certainly doesn’t preclude one of our staff filing a suit against us that we have released personal information.


Again, I strongly support, as does my organization, that DSS be the entity that releases the information.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask a question, because this came up when we heard Senator Dunn’s bill in my committee.  I didn’t get a clear answer, and I had asked Ms. Lopez to respond and be prepared to respond in this hearing.  


There was a representation made – and I’m not sure, maybe Ms. Clearey   did – that once an employee was hired, that some providers of child care have indicated that they preferred to fire the employee or dismiss the employee rather than disclose either, one, a conviction without telling what that conviction is; or two, the nature of that conviction.  


Has that occurred, and is that legal?


MS. CLEAREY:  I can respond to that, Senator Ortiz.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  How often has it occurred?


MS. CLEAREY:  That has occurred.  I don’t know how often it’s occurred.  We’ve gotten two hotline calls on that issue.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  In what part of the state?


MS. CLEAREY:  One was in Southern California someplace, and one was up here in the Bay Area.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And it was by the employee?


MS. CLEAREY:  They’ve been calls from employees.  I’ve also gotten calls from providers and have participated in provider forums where providers specifically asked me about the legality.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  The legality of dismissing an employee?


MS. CLEAREY:  Of dismissing because they don’t want to damage the reputation of their child care center.  The fact is, this is a very, very low-paying salary.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I want facts, though.  Two cases on a hotline.


MS. CLEAREY:  The facts are that these are primarily at-will employees who don’t have rights.  They can be dismissed without implicating any legal things.  If, in fact, they did have a legal right because of the low salary, they would not be likely to be able to pursue them because an employment law attorney would be not likely to take the case.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think it’s really important that if we’re getting these allegations that, in fact, employees are being dismissed rather than disclosed, then that’s very serious, as I mentioned in the last hearing.  The liability question that was raised, I think, is an issue there as well.  


Ms. Lopez, I had asked, when I ran into you somewhere, that I would like the Department to weigh in.  You said there was some research.  But my sense is, if they’re already hired, whether or not they’re at-will employees, that there at least is a vested property—


SENATOR DUNN:  I agree with Ms. Clearey, that basically the adage in the law is you can be fired for any reason, except an illegal reason, when you’re an at-will employee.  Firing somebody because they happen to be an exempt employee is not an illegal reason; illegal being race, color, creed, etc.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Without cause means you cannot, or if you weigh in—


SENATOR DUNN:  Obviously, if you say things that are not true, you’re going to be dealing with libel and slander law.


But my concern with the liability question is, if we really peel away all the layers and get down to a lay assessment of that question, it’s “I’m okay having an exempted employee on my staff, but I’m not okay to tell the parents whose children I serve in that facility that I have an exempted employee.”  


I really struggle that the issue really is one of “I don’t want anybody to know that I’ve got an exempted employee on my staff.”


SENATOR ORTIZ:  “Therefore, I will dismiss them.”


SENATOR DUNN:  Correct.  I think that’s reprehensible that they would do that, but if you look at the choices that they have made, that doesn’t bode well on the character of that individual who has made that decision to terminate an employee when faced with the question of “Do I let people know that I’ve got an exempted employee on my staff?” 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s hear from the Department whether there’s a policy or what your attorneys have advised.


MS. LOPEZ:  Our review of case law did not identify any cases that would prohibit an employer from either not hiring or terminating somebody on the basis of the fact that they have a conviction.  


Again, it’s a complicated issue.  There may be more specialized law firms that deal in this area, but that’s what our research showed.


MS. MEADE:  If I could respond.  I don’t know what case, obviously, that Chris is talking about, but I can see a scenario where that could happen.  In the fall, when we as licensees received the list from Community Care Licensing of all the people that had exemptions that were at our facilities and we were asked to identify whether they were still attached to and working for us, there were several instances – my own agency being one of them – where there were people listed who had exemptions that we did not know about.  In discussion, I think it was through the simplified exemption process, where the crime was so minor and had been so many years ago that it was granted pro forma through DSS.  


I can imagine a contractor, even a school district who runs a child development program, not knowing that someone had an automatic exemption, for want of a better word, and they found out.  Many, many agencies and many school districts, if they didn’t in the past, now have a policy that says, “We will not ask for exemptions.”  So, if your agency had a policy that said, “We will not ask for exemptions,” and you discovered that you had someone with one of these minors – a minor simplified exemption where you weren’t aware of it – I could see where someone would go and say, “I’m sorry.”


SENATOR DUNN:  But wouldn’t you agree, Ms. Meade, though, that the child care providers’ facilities in California are in that position right now?  My legislation, this discussion, they’re in that position right now.  The CBS lawsuit has ordered folks that when asked, if you got an exemption, you got to tell them.


MS. MEADE:  Absolutely.


SENATOR DUNN:  So, we’re there already.


MS. MEADE:  I’m just saying I could imagine where someone who had an exemption and the employer came and said, “You’re terminated,” how they could do that without knowing that they had an exempted person on staff.


SENATOR DUNN:  Okay, but my question is, as we look forward instead of backwards, now that we are where we are – and let’s assume a discussion for a wholesale revamping of the underlying system is going to take a year or two process – what do we do right now as a result of the CBS lawsuit?  Because your providers are in that position that you are concerned about right now.  What do we do?


MS. MEADE:  I would say the first thing is that no exemptions should be granted, even the simplified ones, without knowledge of the employer.  That’s the first step, so that every employer knows if they have someone in their employ and let the employer decide.  I would hope that employers would say, “Yes, just because someone has been granted an exemption does not mean that they shouldn’t be here.”  I think the next thing is there should be a poster up in every center—


SENATOR DUNN:  Let me stop you right there.  Your suggestion puts you right back into the area of concern you’ve expressed, which is, if the employer should have knowledge of the existence of the exemption, they can say, “I don’t want that employee at my facility.”  So, we’re right back to the very concern that you’ve expressed.


MS. MEADE:  But I think at this point, employers need to know if they have someone in their employ with an exemption.  When we are notified that there’s been a hit, whether it’s on a current employee or someone who’s just joined us, what we have to determine is if we are going to support this person asking for an exemption.  And the decision is made right then.  We don’t know the crime.  We have to go to the employee and we have to say, “We’ve been notified by Community Care Licensing that there’s been a hit.  Do you want to disclose what it’s about?”  The employee has the right to say, “I don’t want to disclose,” and then, obviously, they leave your employment.  Then they disclose.  At that point, you as an employer have to decide whether you will support this person getting an exemption or not and work along with the process.  It’s already a team process now.  It is already a process that every employer—


SENATOR DUNN:  A team process without the parents.


MS. MEADE:  Well, at this point, because of the lawsuit, what the court has said the parents deserve to know is if there’s somebody with an exemption.  At this point, the person doesn’t have an exemption.  There’s the decision to be made to apply or not.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me weigh in, because one of the questions is outlined here and we’re on this topic area, and I think it might clarify it.


Regarding the Governor’s action, once DSS determined that you did not have the authority to require the actions requested of the licensee in the March 22nd letter, because regs had not been adopted, why did the Department not formally then clarify its request to the providers?


MS. LOPEZ:  We have developed another letter that we’re going to be mailing out to providers, and we will be telling providers in that letter that we’re developing regulations and that when those regulations are in place, if there are any provider requirements, they will be enforced at that time.


What we are doing now is we are having our translation of that letter reviewed outside the Department.  There were some issues that were previously mentioned that our prior translation was not as well done as it could be.  So, we’ve gone outside the Department now to get assistance with the translation, and we’ve gotten feedback on that.  We’re approving that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me go back, because I think the March 22nd letter actually directed the providers to disclose the names to the parents – which you don’t have the authority, and I know you’re telling people you don’t have the authority and you haven’t had the authority and will be developing regs to maybe have the authority – but you have some providers who are in a situation where they believe that they have an obligation to tell the parents the names of the persons who have a hit.  That’s a problem.


MS. LOPEZ:  We have notified our offices and we have also notified in many public forums that we are working on regulations.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I know, but you know what?  When the Department says to me you have the ability to respond immediately when you get a hit or a subsequent arrest, and then I hear that you haven’t been able, from March 22nd to May 8th, in an organized fashion tell providers that they can’t do what you told them to do in the March 22nd letter and you don’t have any authority to do that, that’s troubling.  It makes me question whether you have the ability to do all the other things that you assure us you can do, whether it’s to protect the safety of the child or respect the privacy of the employee.  This is of concern.  That should have gone out immediately.  There should have been confirmation phones, faxes, visits.


That brings us to ask:  Is government doing the right thing here, whether we like where the policy is going or not?


Ms. Siegel.


MS. SIEGEL:  I wanted to say that we have had this information in the Resource and Referral Network, and through our own channels we’ve tried to get it out.  But I completely agree with you.  When I spoke earlier of the contradictions and confusion, I believe that the Governor’s action, which said to the Department of Social Services “you will do this” – I want to say that this has become a political football, for better or for worse.  And I think that one of the things that you all have the power to do – we can only implore you to do it – but you have the power to basically catch the ball, stop the ball, and make this thing sane and right.  There are more providers who can tell you what it really means.  


Read the Sacramento Bee on Sunday.  There’s a young woman who’s ready to resign from her center because she had a misdemeanor DUI thirteen years ago and doesn’t want to do harm to her center, doesn’t want to hurt the reputation of that center.


I want to say, back to my earlier recommendation – which we will work with you on, and I hope you’ll take it as an amendment to your bill – a lot of this grief right now – not all of it but a lot of it – could be simply truncated if we took the misdemeanors out.  Ninety-four percent of the people don’t even need to be looked at.


SENATOR DUNN:  Let me ask you a question then, Ms. Siegel.


Let’s assume that was done.  I’m not suggesting it will or could be.  If that was done, does that change your position in the sense of, for exempted crimes, the parents ought to have the right to the information?


MS. SIEGEL:  If the field of exempted crimes were narrowed to the felonies.


SENATOR DUNN:  Only felonies.


MS. SIEGEL:  Yes.  If it were narrowed to only felonies.


SENATOR DUNN:  Exposing oneself to a child is a misdemeanor.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Firearm within a city, grand theft.


MS. SIEGEL:  All right.  You are the experts who know these lists.


SENATOR DUNN:  That was a dangerous comment. 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Battery with serious bodily injury.


MS. SIEGEL:  I said earlier, I made two recommendations.  Expand the list of the fifty-one sacred crimes.  Nobody wants those things to slip through.  If somebody has exposed themselves to a child, I don’t personally think they should ever take care of children.  So, fix the list.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Ms. Siegel, wait.  You will go through the Chair.  And Senator Dunn, you’ll go through the Chair.  


There are misdemeanor convictions that ought not to be exemptible.  I think we want to look at battery with serious bodily injury.  If it was ten years ago, maybe that’s not important.  If it was a week ago, I think we should look at it.  I don’t know what the nuances are, but if somebody’s waving a firearm, that’s a misdemeanor.  So, be careful when you say that.


MS. SIEGEL:  Okay, what I would say is I would look to the wisdom of the Public Safety Committee and your committee to inform us, and I would ask the Department of Justice and the Department of Social Services to say to us, “What are those misdemeanors that should be added to the list?” and then take the rest of them off.  Let’s fix what’s broken.  Let’s not overrespond where we don’t need to be.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s move on in the committee hearing.  I want to hear from Ms. Barankin, Ms. Woodward, and then Ms. Burri.  Then we’ve got a whole other topic area to cover, and I am going to be leaving.  I apologize.  I will be leaving in five minutes.  I don’t know if Senator Dunn wants to remain in the committee.  I don’t know if there are other Members that are watching on television that want to join the committee and hopefully spend some time, but I don’t want the rest of the speakers not to be heard.


Ms. Barankin?


MS. CATHY BARANKIN:  Madam Chair, Senator Dunn.  I’ll be very brief because I know the time constraints.


I guess in response to all the fear that there is about the way the Governor’s directive might be carried out or the Department of Social Services might carry out their part of this and what regulations might get adopted, I agree with so much of what the folks across the table from me say, and I can’t, for the life of me, with Senator Dunn, figure out why we don’t support his alternative.  But that’s just my little editorial aside.  We do support Senator Dunn’s SB 1335.


Just a couple of things that the committee might be interested in taking a look at in the future that came out in the last Joint Audit Committee meeting on this is that, despite the sensational publicity around all these folks who have gotten an exemption, we’ve never seen any evidence that people who get an exemption have done any harm to children.  Perhaps that’s something we could ask the Department to verify or provide some information on, and maybe then we’d know the extent of the problem that we’re dealing with here.


With regard to your issue, Senator Ortiz, about getting notified about subsequent arrests or subsequent convictions, there’s a program call the Pull Notice Program which we use for our bus drivers who drive youth buses and so forth.  They’re very easily notified and routinely notified about any subsequent arrests.  Why we can’t implement that same kind of program for child care providers has long been a question that we’ve been asking.


And the final thing I want to raise, just very briefly, has to do with the Live Scan.  I’ve heard people here say how important it is, how we need more access to Live Scan.  This week we received a copy of a letter from the Department of Justice indicating that only governmental agencies would have access to using the Live Scan check.  That’s something that perhaps this committee should be concerned with as well.  And I will get you a copy of that letter and hope that you can work with us to make sure that we are not denied that access.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  We will.


Ms. Kerry Woodward.


MS. KERRY WOODWARD:  Hello.  I will also try and keep my comments briefer than I was originally going to.


It is true that the parents are very concerned about the safety of their children.  That’s the most important thing to parents.  But there is also great fear right now in the child care field among the workers.  There’s a fear of being in the field of “Do I dare get up in the morning?  What’s going to happen if I do some little thing wrong?  Will I lose my job?”  I have heard cases in which there are people thinking of leaving the field because they do not want their past life to become an open book to all the parents in their school.  I have heard of directors or owners of child care facilities that are considering firing good staff because they are afraid of negative publicity that might come through with the disclosure of exemptions.


For those reasons, I strongly urge that the information of who in a facility has an exemption be maintained by DSS and that the parents understand that they can go to DSS for that information.  The information is public.  It’s how aggressively it will be publicized.  If it’s publicized so aggressively that all parents have that information of all workers in their child’s facility, it does put a great chilling effect, and there already is a very severe crisis in the child care field in terms of finding good teachers and good staff.


Regarding the question of whether or not the actual crimes should also be public information, which I understand is in Senator Dunn’s bill, I would only say that I think it’s imperative that if there is public access to the criminal record, there should also be public access to the reasons why the exemption was granted.  Parents want to feel that their children are secure.  They want to trust the process.  If they know why the exemption was granted, it will give them the feeling of comfort in the decision that the state has made.


Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  Thank you for being brief.  I do appreciate it.


Our final speaker under this panel is Ms. Wendy Burri.


MS. WENDY BURRI:  Yes, I’m the director at Carmichael Presbyterian Preschool.  


I cannot tell you how much anxiety this letter has caused us.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s the March 22nd letter that you now know you don’t have to—


MS. BURRI:  Yes, and I found that out today by reading the paperwork.  No one from my resource and referral agency told us we didn’t have to send it out.  No one from Community Care Licensing informed us of that.  I read it today in your paperwork.  I have not sent out the letter under advice of counsel, but when people say they’ve been getting the word out, it hasn’t been going out.  We are on lots of mailing lists, trust me.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You’re here in Sacramento.


MS. BURRI:  Yes, we are right here in Sacramento.


I was going to tell you about the very human face of this, about an employee that’s very beloved by our parents.  We are a half-day program.  We are not day care.  Our children don’t come all day.  I have had no questions regarding if we have exemptions because I don’t think it’s occurred to our parents that anyone in our school would have an exemption.  No one has mentioned the articles to me because they all say “day care.”  Their children are not in day care, so they don’t think it applies to them.  I don’t think they realize we’re under the same licensing umbrella, just because their children only come nine to twelve, two days a week.


Because we’re a Christian preschool, we did apply for an exemption for this person before she’d even worked for us.  She disclosed this immediately.  I let her fingerprints come up and got the word that we needed to get an exemption.  The chairman of our parent committee, myself, the pastor, and the chairman of the church administrative committee sat down and decided from the letter she wrote us that she was a person that we would want to grant an exemption for.  She happened to be in a car with sleeping children when her sister shoplifted at Mervyns, and because her sister put the stuff in her car, she was arrested as an accessory to shoplifting.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s a candidate for the—


MS. BURRI:  Throw it out, yes.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Not that I’m doing the legislation, though.


MS. BURRI:  Because you’re young and poor, you don’t fight it.  You just take your community service and try to move on with your life.  Now it’s come back to hit her in the behind basically.  And she’s worked very hard.


SENATOR DUNN:  Can I ask for clarification on that?  Maybe I missed it.  How?  How has it come back to bite her now?


MS. BURRI:  Because now I have to disclose her name to the parents and say that she has an exemption for a crime she committed.


SENATOR DUNN:  But here’s my question then, okay?  And I understand that’s an uncomfortable position to be in.


MS. BURRI:  It’s extremely uncomfortable.


SENATOR DUNN:  I just said it is an uncomfortable position to be in.  But you weighed the circumstances and you made the decision to employ her.  Don’t you think you’re going to be equally as capable of having that reason discussion with a parent who asks?


MS. BURRI:  Yes, I do, and the parents that know her now love her and will dismiss it and say, “She’s so wonderful.”  But what about the parents that come in next fall?  They get the same letter.  They don’t know her from a hole in the ground.


SENATOR DUNN:  You are correct.  And who gets to make that decision?


MS. BURRI:  It should be the parents’ decision.  My feeling is, and this is what I feel, I feel—


SENATOR DUNN:  Isn’t that the answer?


MS. BURRI:  Let me tell you a little scenario here.  I can see a system where the crimes are categorized by level.  Level 1 being accessory to shoplifting and a few others that are on that list.  Level 2, Level 3, Level 4.  Then we inform the parent that there is an employee at the school with a Level 1 exemption.  They can go to the list, look at the crimes, and say, “Okay, shoplifting.  Well, I did that myself.”  Or, they can say, “I don’t want my child in a school where someone was convicted of a crime,” and they can go somewhere else, without disclosing the person’s name – someone who has turned their life around.


We’re in a very upper middleclass community.  Some people are extremely judgmental.


SENATOR DUNN:  I don’t think judgmentalness – if there is such a word – rests just with the upper class.


MS. BURRI:  Okay, I can tell you that I had a parent that was concerned that the teacher didn’t know – “Are you sure she’s been teaching enough?”


I said, “She has twenty years’ experience in Head Start.”


This parent had never heard of Head Start.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me ask you to finish up, Ms. Burri, because I’m going to have Senator Dunn weigh in a last question, and then I’m going to have a comment on your recommendations.


MS. BURRI:  Okay.  


I would like to say, I would have a lot less gray hairs if I had found out that I didn’t have to send that letter out several weeks ago.


SENATOR DUNN:  Again, I’m not so sure anybody disagrees with you on the letter.  That was a mistake, in my view, and I’ve said it from the get-go.  But my question to you is, the issue you’re really raising is the question of whether we should change the underlying system so that we make the categories.  I know you weren’t here yesterday.  I referred to them as the “freebie category ” – the exempt category:  You are never going to be employed in these facilities for those past crimes.  That debate is ongoing, and that’s what much of today is about.


If this process, examining the underlying system, goes on for another year before we get to something that we feel can work its way through the legislative body and signed by the Governor, what’s your position with respect to the unfortunate spot the parent is in right now due to the CBS decision?  Do we leave that parent there for the time that we debate how to change or improve the underlying system?  Or do we give them full knowledge during that time period so they can make those decisions?  Because right now they’re in a very tough spot.


MS. BURRI:  I actually started out my statement today by saying I felt very much between a rock and a hard place.  Your question puts me right there again.


She’s worked for me for two years and nothing’s happened.  It’s not a problem.  On one hand, I don’t think it would be a problem to wait another year.  On the other hand, if, according to the Sacramento Bee, you can be a stalker and be given an exemption, then I think we do need to disclose who they are.  Stalkers or arsonists.  These people do not belong in child care.


I still cannot get out from the rock and the hard place.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I think that brings me to my quick comment.  You offered a scheme and Senator Dunn is struggling for that scheme of what is a permissible past conviction.


MS. BURRI:  I didn’t say we had to eliminate them, just categorize them so parents can make judgments.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me finish.  What you do is listen when the Chair speaks.


MS. BURRI:  I’m sorry.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  The difficult part of this is anyone who’s ever looked  into – and I smiled when you suggested tier 1, tier 2, tier 3 – anyone who has ever looked into the area of the Penal Code and background checks – and this is something I’ve struggled with because it’s an absolute mess, and I’ve worked with the Department of Justice over the years – there’s one area of the code and one series of restrictions, it used to be, if you were a teacher.  Nothing if you’re a nonteacher employee of a school district.  That’s now in place.  If you’re a private company that transports developmentally disabled adults – but they’re adults, like three of the young women who were molested in my district – there was nothing in the code to address that, and I carried a bill to fix that.  They’re adults but they are developmentally disabled and they were assaulted, and there was significant civil actions and pain on these families.  Then, if you are a paratransit driver, for example, or a public bus line but not in a school setting, there’s another area in the Vehicle Code, some in the Penal Code, some in the Education Code, child care, community care licensing.  


This is an absolute nightmare of a scheme.  Each year we try to conform and each year somebody comes in with an anecdotal case that doesn’t fit the general rule, and we open it up again.  My suggestion is that we look at the models in the code that affect children in a school setting.  


There was a lot of debate, by the way, when we extended it to private schools.  Everybody that thought we should do it in public schools suddenly objected to private schools until we had the two coaches.  One coach in one situation had been convicted of rape and was found improperly with students in the Bay Area in a private school setting.  So, we saw a rush of incidences that made the law.  


I don’t want there to be the situation in a child care setting where the gap in the law created the rush to change that area.  


I think you’re on the right track, and you’re acknowledging how difficult it is.  Unfortunately, we now have this court decision, the CBS decision, that is driving some sort of sanity to this area that is difficult to meld, and it makes it even more confusing, quite frankly, with the actions of the Department and the letter and the confusion there.


Staff has worked on this over the years from the Public Safety Committee, so I would suggest they look at that Education Code area and see if that’s a model.  I just don’t think a child in a child care setting who may be younger or of school age ought to be less protected than a child in school.  It’s not just which crimes should be prohibited – freebies or non-freebies – it’s also the prohibition that someone be hired until that clearance is conducted.  What happens when they’re subsequently arrested after they’ve cleared for initial hire?  There’s no law on the books and no statutes that say they cannot step into a child care setting.  There’s another gap that doesn’t talk about subsequent arrests and absent convictions.


We have a huge challenge here.  Again, Public Safety ought to be grappling with this.  And I neglected to thank Senator Polanco for joining us.  He was in a Budget subcommittee, I believe.  He is on the Public Safety Committee, and I thank him for joining us.


With that, I’m going to leave because I suspect there are other Members that will work through the last part of this session.  I’m not going to go through the questions.  This is a joint committee of the Public Safety Committee and the Health and Human Services Committee.  We have covered through page 4 of the Members’ outline.  We are now in the “General Safety Issues” portion of the agenda.  I, unfortunately, am over a half hour late for another meeting, and I’m hoping that I can catch that meeting.  


I thank everybody that’s been a participant here today, and I encourage my colleagues to please give some time to these speakers and staff that have done a great job.  I’ll be watching from my office if I can catch the meeting.


Thank you.


SENATOR DUNN:  I’m just an interloper, Senator Polanco.  I’m on neither committee actually.


SENATOR RICHARD POLANCO:  But the author.


Shall we continue with the next group of panelists?  We have with us the State Auditor.  She is next.  The subject matter is the “General Safety Issues.”  


Elaine, good to see you.  Good to have you here.  Do you want to begin?


MS. HOWLE:  Thank you, Senator.  Just quick comments.


To bring you up to speed, Senator Polanco, the presentation that I’ve been making in each of the panels is relative to an audit we issued in August of 2000 relative to the one-year response that we received from the Department in August of 2001.  


In the general safety area, we had a couple of issues.  One area that we looked at is the Department following up on substantiated complaints to make sure that those complaints had been corrected.  We had concerns there.  We had a sample of 14 complaints, and in 5 instances we found the Department could not demonstrate that the complaint had been corrected.  So, that was an area relative to monitoring that we had some concerns about.


In addition, we had concerns related to the enforcement of legal actions that had taken place relative to probation, revocation of licenses, or exclusions.  Exclusion is when an individual should be excluded from the facility.  And again, similar to following up on complaints, we had concerns with the Department making sure that these enforcement actions were taken.  For example, in probation, we found that the Department was not making timely visits to those facilities that were on probation.  One example is a facility was on probation for a two-year period.  The visit didn’t occur until month twenty-three of the twenty-four-month probationary period.  So, we had a concern there.


And again, similar to not ensuring that the complaints had been corrected, same thing on revocations.  We looked at 30 actions.  Thirteen were revocations, and in 6 cases we didn’t see any evidence that the Department could provide that it had followed up and ensured that the facility had been closed and the license had been revoked.  So, we certainly had some concerns in this area.


I’ll open it up to questions.


SENATOR POLANCO:  With regards to the specific questions, what are the most pervasive and threatening problems confronting children’s safety in the child care settings that you were able to identify?


MS. HOWLE:  I need a minute to look at my notes.


SENATOR POLANCO:  And this is a question that we would like the overall panel to share with the committee your thoughts and your responses.


MS. HOWLE:  I need some assistance from the Department as far as the type of things.  It will give me a chance to look through my notes.


SENATOR POLANCO:  Okay.


MS. LOPEZ:  I’d like to respond, first of all, to the audit recommendations around follow-up, both to ensure that plans of correction have been implemented and that we are following up on cases dealing with probation or revoked licenses.  We have instituted written procedures for staff and training and follow-up on those areas, so I believe that we have implemented those recommendations.


SENATOR POLANCO:  So, the thirteen revocations occurred?


MS. LOPEZ:  Yes.  And in those cases, I think the issue was we had revoked a license but we didn’t have proof positive that we had been out to visit to demonstrate that that facility was no longer operating.  We are making those follow-up visits and documenting them now.


SENATOR POLANCO:  When will those visits be completed?


MS. LOPEZ:  This is an ongoing issue for facilities where a license is revoked.  I think you were talking about the audit that was completed two years ago of a sample of cases that was done at that time.


SENATOR POLANCO:  Of those samples, those thirteen visits have been completed?


MS. LOPEZ:  Yes.  And we have instituted improved tracking systems and making sure that we are documenting that the corrective action has been taken.


SENATOR POLANCO:  So, from the Department’s point of view, what are the most threatening issues or problems confronting children’s safety?


MS. LOPEZ:  I think you have to divide it into those which occur most frequently and those that are the most threatening.  The most threatening issues, of course, would be physical harm to a child.  In those cases, if we investigate a complaint and substantiate that, we can close a facility and suspend the license within a matter of days.  Those are relatively rare situations.  The more common situations are involving physical plant, staff ratios, and record keeping.  For example, facilities have to maintain proof that children have been immunized in order to be in a child care home or in a child care center.  If we visit a home and we find that they don’t have the immunization records up to date, then we will cite them for that.  


I would say that’s an important issue, but it’s not the same level of an issue of a child being left unattended, alone, or having a swimming pool that’s uncovered that children have access to, or forgetting that the child’s in the park, or having a child that’s physically injured or molested by somebody.  Those are cases that we would want to immediately close a facility if something like that happened.


SENATOR POLANCO:  Okay.


MS. HOWLE:  That’s pretty much my presentation.  It was related to many of the safety issues we were looking at:  the Department’s ability to monitor the facilities and specific to complaints and then the enforcement of legal actions.


SENATOR POLANCO:  Our next witness?  Patti Siegel?


MS. SIEGEL:  We do hear about complaints in the Child Care Resource and Referral Network, but we have not noticed in the last few years, or five years, any unprecedented surge in the number of complaints that we’ve heard from parents or that we are passing on to Community Care Licensing.


In terms of the response to the general issues that were raised in the Orange County Register, I would have to say that across the state that is not our experience.  It is not our experience that there is rampant abuse of licensing standards.


I would say – and, Senator Dunn, this goes back to one of your earlier comments – that I think it’s really difficult – in fact, impossible – to separate the issue of general safety issues in child care from the issue that Senator Dunn eloquently raised earlier, which is the lack of general support for child care in this state.  When you have more than 300,000 parents waiting for child care, I think it really isn’t a buyer’s market.  I know that’s not the topic of this hearing, but I hope that independently, as all of you look at the budget and make hard decisions on the budget this year, which each of you will be doing, that you’ll think about the overall safety of children and what our lack of a finished, well-developed child care system in this state means to both providers who struggle to do a good job and to parents who struggle to find good care.


I have a couple of specific suggestions, and they’re sort of historical, that I would make.  One of the things that we lost – and I don’t remember quite when we lost it – we used to visit family child care homes.  That’s an individual who’s caring for a small group of children in his or her home – up to eight children small, fourteen large.  We used to visit those homes as we do child care centers:  on an annual basis.  We don’t do that anymore.  I’m sure it was a cost-saving kind of deal.  Now we go once every three years.  I think what we hear the most about in terms of noncompliance is overcrowding.  You know, parents calling us back and saying, “There were a lot of kids.”


I think the best way to protect against that in all licensed care is for providers to know that there will be annual visits.  Saying that, I know and you know that that would add a hunk of money to Martha’s budget, but I would say that if we’re serious about the health and safety of children, we consider that.


There’s another thing that we lost way back when – maybe nobody but me was even here to remember – but in 1984, when family child care licensing was grossly under attack, we actually used to in the State of California, from when I started in 1972 until 1984, we used to license anyone who cared for the children of anyone in their home.  So, if Chris had five children and I took care of them in my home, I had to be licensed.  I had to be fingerprinted.  Never mind that it was one other family.  When we were at risk of losing licensing altogether for family child care and going to a registration system, we switched and said, “You’re exempt if you’re caring for the children from one other family.”

I would say to you that since the implementation of welfare reform – that category of one other family and the numbers of aunts, uncles, and cousins that have grown exponentially – we have an awful lot of people who fall into that exempt category.  I would suggest that if we’re going to really be serious about the health and safety of children, we would tighten up our family child care regulations and at least make annual visits and think about closing that loophole that has become a very large one for family caregivers caring for the children from one other family.


SENATOR POLANCO:  Senator Dunn.


SENATOR DUNN:  One question, Mr. Chair.


Patti, what I’m concerned about is one of your very early comments that you made, which is that your experience – for example, what was cited in this arena by the Register – is not common, I think was your word.  What have you or the Resource done to investigate, not just since the Register articles, but for the past few years to actually investigate the extent to which these sort of conditions exist within the world of child care services?


MS. SIEGEL:  First of all, we do everything we can to improve the quality and supply of child care, and our efforts in Child Care Resource and Referral are primarily concentrated on family child care.  We really don’t have the resources to do intensive work to expand the supply of child care centers because that requires, frankly, a lot more capital, a lot more time.  We do a lot of training – training in English, Spanish, Vietnamese – to help people understand what it is to be a good provider; some of the things that Ms. Lopez referred to earlier.  So, we do a lot to improve the health and safety on the front end.


Whenever we hear a complaint from a parent, we immediately refer that parent to Community Care Licensing.  And we have a memorandum of understanding with each and every local Community Care Licensing office where, if we hear a serious complaint, any complaint, where the health and safety of that child is at risk at that moment, then we ourselves call Community Care Licensing.


SENATOR DUNN:  My concern with that, though, is I understand that but I think you have to admit as well that certainly no broad-based examination of the condition of facilities is out there.  And Patti, all I’m asking is be careful with those comments about, well, the Register’s off track here because they just cited a few high profile examples, when you don’t even have the information available to you.


MS. SIEGEL:  I think the information that we do have available is the richest, most important information.  You talk about the importance of parents.  What we have is the daily feedback, the daily conversation, of the consumers who send their children to each and every one of the facilities around this table.  We are not supported nor are we mandated in state law to go beyond that.  We are the helpers.  They are the cops.


SENATOR DUNN:  I’m not critical of your role.  What I’m being critical of is your representations in front of the committee that there may not be an extensive problem out there when you don’t have that information available to you.


MS. SIEGEL:  I beg your pardon, but I qualified it.  I was very careful to say we are not hearing from parents.  That is our job.  Our primary job in Resource and Referral is to speak to parents and help facilitate their search for child care.  We have not heard in that process this year, last year, in the last five years, an overwhelming number of “Something’s really wrong.”  If it were, I would represent that.


SENATOR DUNN:  Got it.


Chris.


MS. CLEAREY:  I would just reiterate, also speaking to your question, the Child Care Law Center runs a hotline which is available to parents and providers and child advocates from all over the state.  My review of the Child Care Law Center service calls over the last several years indicates that there has been a very positive tightening up of the system under Martha Lopez.  The people that I have spoken with in the field have positively responded to the Rita Saenz-Martha Lopez tightening of the background exemption checks and that sort of thing.  I feel like that is definitely where this body should place its energy; that if there are places, as we indicated before, we certainly have no problem adding any kind of crime to the nonexemptible list.


SENATOR DUNN:  Remember, we’re beyond that.  We’re on the general safety issues.


MS. CLEAREY:  As to the general safety, I just want to say that having providers – and this is speaking to the Governor’s directive – having providers notify parents of the fact of an exemption does nothing to help children’s safety.  Neither does having DSS notify parents of the reason for an exemption.  


As to the issue of how can we leave parents in this position, I point out that Ms. Lopez mentioned that no parent had, in fact, called to get that information.  Is that correct?


MS. LOPEZ:  No, I did not say that.  I think it was mentioned otherwise.  We have been keeping tallies for the past few weeks of parents who have called us.


SENATOR DUNN:  Can I interrupt you guys?  This is back to the privacy issue.  We’re on the general safety issues here.  Let’s stay on those, okay?


MS. CLEAREY:  As to the safety, I would reiterate that what’s going to make child care safer is to have the review of the system that’s currently ongoing and then responding to any holes that are discovered.  But I don’t know currently of holes that are blatant, big holes in the system.


SENATOR DUNN:  Okay.


Dolores?


MS. MEADE:  I would support Patti’s comments about family child care.  I think it would be very helpful in this system if our family child care homes had an annual visit in the same way that centers are.  I think it has not helped the whole system to have a visit every three years.


As far as overcrowding and those kinds of issues, I can only speak from my own experience.  My own agency in L.A. County holds over ninety licenses.  We do preschool and school-age care on public school campuses.  We are a nonprofit.  I can say that probably within the last five years, the analysts coming out from Community Care Licensing for our annual visits have been very thorough.  The regulations are far more understandably cited from one community to another.  There is less personal agenda by analysts than there were in the past, so that if somebody comes in and says, “Your carpet is dirty,” then it would be an analyst saying that no matter where.


I have no personal knowledge of what was cited in Orange County.  I can tell you that if it is your annual visit and your analyst comes out and you’ve had a painting activity and your carpet has a big gob of blue paint in the middle of it, you are going to be cited.  If your analyst comes out and you’ve had an associate teacher become ill and she’s had to leave and the substitute is on the way, you are going to be cited for being out of ratio, out of compliance.


My concern would be is if there is a demonstration that, visit after visit, centers or homes are cited on the same issue, then I think we have a problem.  In the real world, it is not that out of the realm that you’re going to be cited for something.  My own experience is that I think our centers are much safer and cleaner than they were even five years ago.


SENATOR DUNN:  Okay.


Cathy?


MS. BARANKIN:  Just very briefly, having represented the YMCA for over twenty years, I used to have some great stories about problems that we had with Department of Social Services and some of the ridiculous things that they would come up with, like the water fountains on school grounds where the kids were going all day were too high when the YMCA took over the program in the afternoon.  Things like that.


But since Director Lopez has come in – and not to give her a big head – we really have seen a wonderful partnership with her agency in terms of looking at these regulations in a logical way and applying them in a way that makes sense; and also, in a partnership in working with her staff to do trainings as well as to do joint publications that go out to folks that talk about these safety concerns.  So, we feel that the Department has made a huge amount of progress in this area, and we really don’t get complaints about these kinds of issues.


SENATOR DUNN:  Okay.


Kerry, did you have anything on this topic?


MS. WOODWARD:  Yes.  In terms of safety, I think one of the things that could go very far is if the state would take over the cost of the fingerprinting.  It costs $97 to fingerprint someone.  I think at most facilities, their regular teachers and their regular providers probably are fingerprinted, but when you get into the realm of substitute teachers, it’s a different story.


I know at our center I’ve had people come and apply to be a substitute and I will say, “You cannot be a substitute here unless you have fingerprint clearance.”  And they say, “Oh, really?  Well, I’ve been doing this for years at other centers and nobody has every asked me that.  No, I’ve never been fingerprinted.”  It’s expensive because you don’t know if a substitute is going to be there for one day or two days or three days or if it’s going to be a long-term substitute.


I also think to speed the review process on exemptions would make everyone feel safer.  The process is long.  We have an unfortunate case in our own center of a wonderful young man in terms of caring for the children.  We did know and did discuss something on his record before we had hired him and sent his fingerprints in before he started.  It took seven months for the state to tell us that he needed to apply for an exemption.  Unfortunately, that information came a week after the Governor’s six months’ moratorium.  He has been removed from our facility against the wishes of the parents and against the wishes of the school.  There are some children who are distressed because he’s not there.  So, just to speed that process.


The other thing, in terms of substitutes, there is, to my knowledge, presently no way where an individual who is working as a substitute teacher in preschool can go and get fingerprinted without actually having been hired by a child care facility.  They have to get connected with a facility before they can get fingerprinted, and yet, that facility has to pay $97, not knowing that that person will work for more than a day or two at that facility.  I think if there was some way where substitutes could easily get fingerprinted and somehow get in the computer and then have those prints transferred to whichever facility was going to use them, I think that would help in terms of making sure substitutes are fingerprinted.


Again, I know that this is partly the privacy issue but I don’t think you can totally separate safety from privacy issues.  I think if individual privacy rights of child care workers are undermined too far, it is going to cause there to be more unlicensed facilities and more teachers for whom a facility decides, “Oh, there’s something small on the record” – according to this person it’s small – “so I’m not going to fingerprint them and I’ll hope they’re not here when Licensing comes out.”  Then you have somebody who’s not fingerprinted at all.  My concern is that the greatest lack of safety is going to be if there are more unlicensed facilities and more workers who have not been fingerprinted.


SENATOR DUNN:  Okay.  


Wendy, I’ll come to you in just a second.  I know we’re kind of beating the same horse, but I’ll get back to the privacy and say we’re already in that position.


Wendy, a few comments?  And then, Martha, I have a question for you as soon as Wendy is finished.


MS. BURRI:  I’m concerned about the safety issues and some health issues that happen.  It’s been touched on a little bit, but we have people who are in the center every single day and are the greatest observers of what’s going on, and that’s the parents.  However, I think many of them – most of them – do not have a clue what is correct.  It’s not correct for two-year-olds to sit and eat great big chunks of grapes at a table.  It is not okay for an aide to be changing a baby without gloves on.  And these parents don’t know that.  I think if they did know that, they could say, “Why are you changing the baby without gloves on?” and maybe we’d see some corrections.


We recently moved, and I had three movers come and give me estimates, and all three of them brought this little booklet with them of my consumer rights as a person getting moved.  It must have been fifteen pages long, and on the back I had to sign three times – and they took it away with them – to prove that I’d gotten this booklet.  Can we come up with something like that for parents?  They don’t need to get the whole licensing thing but a little outline that lets them know that there needs to be one qualified teacher with every twelve preschoolers and what qualifies someone to be a qualified teacher, so when they walk in and there’s fifteen kids running around in a room and there’s an eighteen-year-old in the room, they can go, “Where’s the other teacher that should be in this room with fifteen children, and what are your qualifications?  Are you an aide or a teacher?”  Then, the people running the centers are going to know that their parents have got a clue and they’re going to start following the rules.


SENATOR DUNN:  In other words, you’re advocating for fully informed parents.


MS. BURRI:  Yes.


SENATOR DUNN:  Just wanted to make sure.


MS. BURRI:  Giving them a booklet doesn’t mean they’re going to read it, but at least you can come back and say, “Well, don’t complain because you got the book.”


SENATOR DUNN:  I was being sarcastic.  I’m sorry.


MS. BURRI:  I know.


SENATOR DUNN:  Martha, my question for you is, because I simply don’t know, if we have a hypothetical situation of ACME Child Care that has been cited for health and safety violations, what is the process that has to be gone through as far as pulling the license, shutting the facility down, etc.?  I suspect it’s torture, but what is that process?


MS. LOPEZ:  It really depends on the violation.  But say we go out to visit on an annual inspection and we find some physical plant issues.  We would write a report on site, and the care provider, or whoever is there that’s in charge of the facility, would, with our licensing staff person, come up with a plan of correction.  That’s part of the visit process.  It’s not just you cite but you say, “What’s the plan of correction?”  That plan of correction may be something that needs to be fixed and can easily be fixed immediately.  You remove something or you cover something or you clean something.  I mean, there are things that can be fixed and are fixed on site during the inspection visit.  Other things may need to be fixed within twenty-four hours or within a week or two weeks, and that’s worked out at the time.


Then, we would require documentation that that has been actually completed if it wasn’t fixed on site.  Sometimes we will go back and make another site visit within a certain number of weeks or, on some occasions, the provider can send us in some documentation that shows something has been fixed.  It might be a photograph that demonstrates that something was corrected.  Maybe a fence around a pool or an area that was dirty that was cleaned up, that sort of thing, so it doesn’t require an actual visit.


If it’s a much more serious thing and it’s something that’s repeated, there are some instances where we might fine the person; although, our program does not rely heavily on fines.  There are some fines such as in the background check area.  That’s an immediate $100 penalty if the background check is not submitted.


SENATOR DUNN:  I want to make sure I understand.  Your – and I’ll label them as inspectors – but they have the ability to issue fines on site.


MS. LOPEZ:  On site for some things.  Not everything.


SENATOR DUNN:  All right.


MS. LOPEZ:  If we have a very serious offense that involves danger to children, and these are what we call imminent danger – so, it could be where a child has been molested, for example, and this may be by somebody who has no criminal history – but if we substantiate a child molest, usually what we would do in that case is if the provider – it may involve a family member of a provider, or a neighbor, or what have you – we can close that facility and we can do that in very short order.


For example, there was a situation in San Francisco reported a couple of weeks ago where there were some pit bull dogs that got into a fight.  It wasn’t in the yard.  The children were not there, but the dogs were in an area of that facility.  We determined with Animal Control investigators and the police that that was really not a safe place for children.  We closed that facility within a couple of days of that incident. 


SENATOR DUNN:  Martha, specifically, what does that mean you closed the facility?


MS. LOPEZ:  What we do is we suspend the license.  We go out to the facility on site and we greet the parents as they are coming to pick up their children.  We’re usually doing this during the day.  I personally review these and I personally sign them.  They are worked up by my legal staff, so we prepare a formal notice to the care provider and the parents and we give the parents a copy of the action that we are taking that details why it’s being taken.


SENATOR DUNN:  Okay.  Two more questions.


First, can you give me an estimate, if you recall, over the past twelve  months – just arbitrarily twelve months – how many facilities have you closed?


MS. LOPEZ:  Where we have done what we call this “temporary suspension order” probably/maybe of child care, I would say – I’m just guessing now because I don’t have this – maybe three dozen in the last year.


SENATOR DUNN:  Total number of licensed child care facilities in California?


MS. LOPEZ:  We have about 60,000.


SENATOR DUNN:  Let’s take the pit bull example.  You show up, you shut them down.  The parents are notified in person right there.  A week later you find the person is right back at it, despite the order.  Now what do you do?


MS. LOPEZ:  We would give them a Notice of Operation in Violation of Law.  In a situation like that, we would probably notify the local police department.


SENATOR DUNN:  I’m guessing that under that scenario, it would require, ultimately, prosecution by a local DA’s office – if the person persists in operating in an unlicensed fashion.


MS. LOPEZ:  And that has happened in rare cases.


SENATOR DUNN:  And I guess we’re right back to the same situation of trying to convince a busy DA that this is a high priority.


MS. LOPEZ:  Yes.


SENATOR DUNN:  All right.  Thanks.


Senator Polanco, I think we’re at the end of the panelists.  Any panelists have any additional things to offer?  


The last category we have is for any additional public testimony if anybody else wishes to add anything.


We thank you for your patience this afternoon.  I’m sure it’s been a long wait.  
And thank you to all the panelists, by the way.  Thank you very much.


MR. TIM FITZHARRIS:  Mr. Chairman and Members.  Tim Fitzharris, representing the Professional Association for Childhood Education.


You’ve already identified the issue that’s of most concern to us, and that’s the disclosure by the employer.  I know it’s not in your bill.  I know you are there and you’ve been helpful.  We talked to your staff about that before, so I’ll give you a position statement and not take up more of your time.


But I do want to say that on that particular directive, we did immediately write the director of Social Services saying that there is no authority for that.


SENATOR DUNN:  Tim, you’re referring to the directive from the Governor’s office to notify everybody?


MR. FITZHARRIS:  The directive from her, from the Social Services Department, out to the field, and said, “It is not good enough just to say ‘We won’t enforce it.’ ”  We asked her to send the same notice that we now hear here out to the same mailing list so we know what to do.  People are doing this and people’s lives are getting destroyed.


SENATOR DUNN:  And what’s their position on that additional mailing?


MR. FITZHARRIS:  Well, I think she told you she’s working on another Spanish version of that and so on.  But we are almost two months downstream and people are acting because they’re afraid of being cited.  You already heard the testimony and I won’t bore you with it further.  There’s going to be a workgroup that she’s setting up as well.  


We do not think the emergency regulations are allowed here.  If the Department wants to take the process through the administrative law process, they need to do that.  I know your bill doesn’t include that as well.  It’s a separate issue, but it is an important concern for us.


We think that the employer can be taken out of this and you can have an   e-mail list that the Department can do or you can go to the local R&R or maybe a local planning council.  Somebody else, other than the employer, if you have to get to the disclosure issue.


SENATOR DUNN:  I’m with you on this one.  I think that should be a parent-to-DSS relationship.


MR. FITZHARRIS:  Yes.  Thank you, sir.


SENATOR DUNN:  Thank you, Tim.


Other testimony?


MR. CLIFF MARCUSSEN:  My name’s Cliff Marcussen, and I am the executive director of Options, which operates in the eastern part of Los Angeles County. 


I want to bring to your attention one other problem.  We have loopholes in the law that allow programs to legally operate without being licensed at all and without having their staff fingerprinted at all.  One of the loopholes I’ll cite for you is that school-age programs can operate during the summer without being licensed and can legally operate without having anybody fingerprinted.  


In the San Gabriel Valley in the last few years, two children have died in these facilities.  Those deaths do not even have to be reported to licensing.  They were both drownings in programs that did not do what they would have had to have done to protect children if they had been licensed facilities.  


These are not faults of Community Care Licensing in the Department.  They are loopholes that are written into the law and allow these programs to operate legally, and I think the Legislature should take a serious look at legally exempted child care, both at the center level and at the family day care home level, and ask:  Do you want huge amounts of child care to be going on that isn’t even regulated?


Thank you.


SENATOR DUNN:  Thank you.  Any additional witnesses?  


Seeing none, Senator Polanco?  Adjourn?


We’re at the end of the day.  Again, I want to thank everybody who testified today for all the committee members.  I appreciate all the input on the one thing I think all of us can agree on.  It’s an extraordinarily difficult issue, trying to find the right solution to it all, which we will keep working on.


Thanks, everybody.  We’re adjourned.
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